TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
AGENDA FOR A REGULAR MEETING
OF THE PROFESSIONAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
May 11, 2017, Thursday
12:00 Noon— Assembly Room 1
Tri-City Medical Center, 4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056

The Committee may make recommendations
to the Board on any of the items listed below,
unless the item is specifically labeled “Informational Only”

Page Time Requestor/
Agenda ltem Nos. Allotted | Presenter
Call To Order/Opening Remarks 2min. | Chair
Approval of Agenda 1-2 2 min. | Chair
Public Comments 5 min. Standard
NOTE: During the Committee’s consideration of any Agenda item,
members of the public also have the right to address the Committee at that
time regarding that item.
Ratification of minutes of the April 2017 Meeting 3112 2min. | Committee
5. New Business
Consideration and Possible Approval of Policies and Procedures 13-14 All
Patient Care Services
1. Antimicrobial Stewardship Policy 15-18
2. Blood Glucose Newborn Monitoring Standardized Procedure 19-22
3. Elective Surgery Pre-Admission MRSA Screening Protocol 23-27
4. Hypoglycemia Management in the Adult Patient Standardized 28-30
Procedure
5. Insulin Therapy Administration Procedure 31-34
6. Insulin, Use of Concentrated Policy 35
7. Nutrition Education of Patients Policy 36
8. Percutaneous Tracheostomy Assist Procedure 37-39
9. Rapid Response Standardized Procedure 40-46
10. Sedation Analgesia Used During Therapeutic Or Diagnostic 47-63
Procedures
11. Self-Administered Continuous Subcutaneous Infusion of Insulin 64-70
(Insulin Pump Therapy) for the Acute Care Patient Policy
12. TDAP (Tetanus, Diptheria & Pertussis) Vaccine Administration for
Antepartum & Post Partum Obstetric Patients Standardized
Procedure 71-73
13. Titrating Medications, Adult Patients Policy 74-77
Administrative Policies and Procedures
1. Non-Discrimination of Patients in Health Programs and Activities 78-79
Policy
2. Policy/ Procedure Approval for Patient Care Services and 80-81
Department Specific
Unit Specific
Medical Staff
1. Medical Staff Funds 8710-572 82-83
Outpatient Infusion Center
1. Emergency Evacuation 84
2. Fire Alarm Evacuation Plan 85-86




Women’s and Newborn Services
1. Medication Administration, NICU- Combined

Formulary Requests

1. Cepastat
2. Donnatal
3. Urea

Pre-Printed Orders
1. Anticoagulation Orders 8711-4518
2. Laparoscopic Surgery orders 8711-4542
3. MRI Contrast Medication Orders

87-90

91
92
93-94

95-96
97-98

6. Review and Discussion of CLINICAL Contracts- Contracts To Review
(Discussion/ Possible Action)
7. Motion to go into Closed Session 2min. | Committee
8. CLOSED SESSION 30 min. | Chair
a. Reports of the Hospital Medical Audit and/or Quality Assurance
Committee (Health & Safety Code Section 32155)
b. Conference with Legal Counsel — Significant exposure to litigation
(Government Code Section 54956.9(b))
9. Reports from the Committee Chairperson of any Action Taken in 10 min. | Chair
Closed Session (Government Code, Section 54957.1)
10. Comments from Members of the Committee 5min. | Committee
11. The next meeting of the Professional Affairs Committee of the Board is on 1 min Chair
June 8, 2017.
12. Adjournment 1 min Chair




IPYON JojoBIIQ

-oygnd
8} Jo siaquisw woly sijuswwod Buipieba.
ydesBesed sy peau |[oyo)py Joyoaaq

‘w8l ayy

JO UONBIBPISUOD S 93JILILLOD

alojaq alqnd ay} 0}

}sais)ul jo way Aue uo olqnd
ay} jo siaqwaw Ag sjuswiwo) ¢

‘uosuyor "ig Aq papuodss pue
ounsobe( Joyoalq Aq apew sem

‘Bunjesu s, yuow sy} 40} Jaquuaiu

BuijoA e se sapwo9d auy) Aq psjuiodde

sem ZJ|nyos uoseys ‘wnionb Jo yoe|

B 0} 8N "SUOleolIPOoU 10 SUOIIPPE OU alam

[IBYSHIN J0308lIQq epusbe ay) snoidde o) uoyoly | ai8y) ‘epusabe ay) pamainal 880D By | epusby jo jeaciddy -z
"L wooy Ajquiessy ul \Y 6€:8 18
1842 J0j08lIg JapJo o) Bunssw sy} pajjed |[BYoYA 10}08.1g 48piQ ol |leQ I
a|qisuodsay suojjepuawwosdy
(s)uosiad juonoy dn-mojjo4 uoissnosiqq oido)

"OpJejuo) snoJe IQ PUB UBWIOAA BOIS 'IQ ‘BN 8us9) “IQ ‘sselS) auuy ybleT Jojosliq ;Jussqy Siequiop

"ZJ9H ualiey] pue eusNng elolied ‘auo)sbuiar §oog 1eqoos3 jenuepy ‘BuoH Lo] ‘spjoukay ejioslid ‘anbeldg epur ‘suyory
Uisgalepy ‘@ousime’] B)sQ ‘puowelq Alejy ‘saineq uoseys ‘siaApy Aouep ‘pieH eswiy ey Alsus ‘UsannoW uney ‘ddo Ayiey ‘esueldwo)
Aiojenbay jo JojoanQq ‘uosiesid iwer ‘Juswabeueyy ysiy Joj Jojoaliq IS ‘UBNBUBARY BIDJBJ ‘|OSUN0D jesouag) ‘Jooy Apor :juasaid siayjo

"J8oIyO doueldwo) jeiyn

‘Meyg-pieusag sjkiayD pue ‘dA “IS /INO ‘ZHNYS UOIBYS ‘ dA "8XT /009 ‘AsjuoD endey ‘03D ‘UIReIQ eAslS fjuesald slaquisyy BUuOA-UON

"uosuyor “iq pue ounsobeq wir 103081 ‘(11eYD) |]BYSHIN BINET JoJ0BNI( JUdSAlY SIOQUISIN

2102 ‘0Z |udy
sajnuly uoissag uado

Bunese 99)1wwo) siieyy Jeuoissajold

1ajua [eolps|y A)D-111

Ld4dvedda




L10¢v0 seINuiN Ovd

elianc) epuled

‘'Slaquisw asIWWoD 8y} Aq
pajou suoioalio0o ajendoidde ay)
UM |enoidde paeog 10} piemio}
Buinow saloljod ay) aroidde

0] uolnow 8y} papuoosas uosuyop
"Jg pue psAow ouljsobe(
Joyoaliq ‘parcidde asem
salnpaoold pue seiolod saoInBS

8ie) jualled syl :NOLLOV

*Aoyjod siy} UO UOISSNOSIP OU SEM 818y |

‘'sanss| ajn

Jo puj Buissaippe Aojjod sjesedss e si asay)
Jey} pejou Sem )| "UOISSNIS|p HOYS e pey
99))ILIWOD [1a)ew uoisiosp ajebolns sy}
BuipseBbal uonsanb e pey jjayou JojoaaQ

‘uaanboy

uIney 1ao0 Alajes Aq papuswiwiodal
SE SiaWJeMm }ayue|q Jo asn oy} uo pappe
aq [|m Jey) suonendis asiy} a1em aseay |

‘'sg|ndwe Buisn uaym sa|pasu
J8}Jl} JO 8SN 8y} U0 SpeW SBM uoiedyueD v

‘Aotjod siyy

Ul Wwie) (Jauoniorld YlesH paljly) dHY du)
8] sAOowWal 0] uoljepuswitlodad e sem aleay |

yieaq
ulelg Jo uoneuiwuislsg g

ZLE ¥NQ 9lerosnsay
JON 0Q /snjels 8poD b

>0__0n_ SISUWLIBAA loyuelg ¢

ainpadoid
SNousABIU| ‘BINXIWPY 2

Aoljod
BLS)LD UOISSIWPY |
:sainpadsoid
pue saidljod ased) jusned

SaINpad0id pue saloljod
J0 |enouddy a|qissod
pue uonelspisuo) ‘e
ssauisng MaN G

ZUSH uauey

"2 102 YoJepy wolj ssinuiw ay}
anoidde o) uoljow ay) papuooss
uosuyor "I pue pasow
oufsobeq Joyaag "dnoib ayy
Aq panoidde Ajsnowiueun sem
pue pailjel aiam sajnulw ay |

‘Bunasw
2102 '6 Yalep woly saynuiw ay) anoidde
0] UoljoW B 10J pajies [|aydHN 10}oaaqg

"L10¢ Yole
JO s8nuUIW JO uoneoyney v

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiag

suonepuawwolay
juondy dn-mojjo4

uoissnasiqg

oido]




L102¥0 ssinuin Ovd

"Ao10d ajoym sy ul pauiejuod

S8} pajelnalqge au) JO ssaualeme Japaq
Joj Aojjod ay; jo Buluuibaq sy} e paoeld
Aiesso|9) e aaey 0} pajsabbns |jayoun
Jo)08.1q ‘Ised ay) ul yoseasal jeuonebnsaaul
ue aAey J,uplp [eldsoy sy} asneoaq

s1 Bulag uoseal ay) ‘Aoljod siyy ul sebueyd Jo
10| B aie 8lay) Jey) uoleosipul Ue Sem alay |

"Ao1j0d s1y} uo uoISSNISIP oU sem alay |

‘Aa1jod siy) uo uoisSNOSIp U sem alay |

*Aorjod siy} UO UOISSNIsIp Ou Sem alay |

"9pIsInNo wolj }ybnoiq pooy Buissaippe
Aoljod sjesedss e s| a1ay) ey} pajou sem |

'SdOd s.on8qeip sy
Aq psw.uos aq 0) spasu asiweaid siy} pue
:sonjeqelp 10} Ajsjos paseab si Aojjod siy |

"alowAue jey} aonoeid Jou saop

[eyidsoy 8y} aouls AUasinu |BOL}8)SqO By}
Jo} sejnwuloj Jueju) buedaud (1) uonoss ay)
N0 8ye} 0] papuswiwosad |[BYdNN J0}oalq

pue saldljod aAnensiuIwpy

Aollod
sbnuq jeuonebiysanuj
ApAioy yosessay 'z

Juswabeue)y
aouaunuoau| Aseunn
ajewa yomaind L |

alnpasoid 1si
Arewwng janedinQ 01

Aolod
lleosy uonesipepy ‘6

Aolj04 sjuswysunop

pue suoimisqng

‘snusy ‘sawil|
—sjusied ‘sjesiy ‘g

sjusiied

onaqelq Joy Adesay

as|olax3 buung
Buuoyuopy asoonjg -4

Aolj0d

sjuswyedsq 8410

Unm sdiysuonejoy
uonInNN pue pood ‘g

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiag

SuoljepuaWW0IY
Juonody dn-mojjod

uoissnasiq

oidoy




14

41020 seinuin Ovd

Bliong eoued

BlBaNg epUed

BlaNg eloued

‘lenoidde pieog 10} p1emIO)
Buirow saioijod ay) aaoidde

0] UoljowW 8y} Papuodas Z)NYoss
uoleys pue pasow oupnsobeq
Joyoalig “panoidde asem saiolod

Hels |edIpsy 8yl :NOILOV

"Znyos uoteys Aq

pspuodss pue ounysobeq 10y08.iqg
Aq panow se paroidde aisem
saljod uopeonp3 syl :NOILLOV

‘lencsdde pieog

Joj plemuoy Buinow Aojjod ayy
anoidde 0} uoyow ay) pepuodes
uosuyor "I pue paaow
ounsobe( Joyoaliq "parcidde
sem ainpaocoud pue Adjjod
SAlleSiulWpY 8yl :NOILOV

'Aojjod Siy} UO UOISSNOSIP OU Sem a1y |
"(1ouonnoeId YlesH paly)

dHY yum paojdal aq |jim juejsisse ueiisAyd
"A2j0d Siy} UO UOISSNOSIP OU SBM 318y |
‘pajepdn aq OS|e {|IM Sa0UBI9eY ‘MBS

-plewiag ajAtay) Joo1j0 aoueldwod Jeiyn
ay}) Ag Jaypuny pamalnal aq jjim Aonjod sy

‘AOHL yim
paoejdal pue Jno uaye) aq pjnoys JNDL Yl
IV ‘NDd Yum pasejdas ag pjnoys soISUaio

"Ao1jod s1y} uo uoISsNISIp ou sem alsy |

"elsu) buijenuspald v

a1en punopp
BuijesH-uoN 21uoIyD
‘eus)uD Bullepuapai) g

Aoyjod uonnjosay JIuo) g

Jsaleluf JO JoIpU0D |
yels [es1papy

Adlj0d uonoy
Areujdiosiq -uoinjosay
andsiq 01 VHY 'S
Aaijod sjuswalinbay
JusjuoD 8sIN0Y O VHY v
Aoljo4 48)uan) Bujuies |
VHY OO 0 910y VHY '€
Aoljod
Juswaje)s Ayoouidioay YHY
Aoijod Janiep 994 SOV L
uoljesnp3y
aoads jun

906 Bulusealog |eoipajy
Aousbiawg -vIviING 1

:Seunpasod

s|qisuodsay
(s)uosiad

'suonepuUAWWOIDY
Juondy dn-mojjo4

uoissnasiq

o|doy

O



S

~
2102¥0 S8inuIiN Ovd

‘Aoljod
Siy} ul pajepdn sem uofjewuojul Ayjiger| ay

“Aojjod
SIY} Ul paysaujel Sem uoljewIol uleps))

‘Aonjod S|y} uo uoISSNISIp OU sem alsy |

‘uoeyuswnoop

uojjejolp Joj papinoid aq |jim 8oueping)
"OWNDL e auop si )i Aem sy} uoieluawnNdop
Jiay} op 0} palinbai ase Aay} ‘Ajjioe}
Jayjoue wolj swlod Ajjlensn sjyuspisal aosuls

"‘Adoosolonyy ul

uonesyiao aAey o3 palinbal ase sueisAyd
Jejnosen |eseyduad Buijenuapaio 10}
Jueojdde sy jey) dnoib ay) Aq pajou sem |

"Aa1j0d siy} uo uoIsSsNosIp ou sem 818y |

* SIY} Joy} 9|qisuodsal

aq ||M oym auo 8y} aq |leys asubisep

e 40 03D 9y} 1o ‘pieog ay) jeyy pasibe
SEM ! ‘98]}ILUWIOD SIY} JO ped)su| ‘sased
wsbiaws uiepas u) Bujjenuspalo paypadxs
Bunuelb 1oy a|qisuodsal uosiad ay

abueys 0} uoissnosip e pey 89D 8y |

sjuswalinbay
aoueinsu| Ayigert L

ueisAyd

1eD-UQ 8y} jo sanng
lleD wooy Asuabiawg gL

03N sbieT je
siaquis|p ssad0ld uoijos|g 6

sjuapisay
juswyuedsq Aouabiawg
Jo} sjuswialinbay
uoneyuswNoog g

ainpasold
[euOlUSAIBIU| JBINDSBA
|esayduad paseg-1syoyie)
spiepuelg Bulenuspaly -2

suoneo||ddy
Jels jeolpapy Buissaoold
‘Aojjod Buijenuspai) -9

$S920.d Buibajaug pue
Bulienuapai) peypadxy
‘Aaljod Bullenuspesd g

Adeiay | usbAxQ
auldipa suequdaiy

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiad

suonepusawWWoddNYy
juoldy dn-mojjo4

uoissnasiq

oidoj




210210 seInuiN Ovd

'ssao0ud Bujjenuspaid

ul pasn sI yoiym aunpaooud A6ojouyos} e Jo
snje)s ay) buneoipul Aoijod siyy 0) pappe sem
Uil S)isqam mau e ey ples JajjiN Auusys
*Ao110d SIY) UO UOoISSNISIP OU Sem aJay |
"Aoyjod siy} uo uoissnosip ou sem aiay |
‘pajepdn aq |m

Koyjod siyy ur pauiejuod sajep jeaocsdde ay
"Ao1jod S1Y) UO UOISSNOSIP OU SEm 818y |

‘Aoljod siyy 1o} pajepdn aq [|Im S@ousleY

‘Ao1jod s1y} uo uoIssSNoSIp ou si al1ay |

*Aa1j0d SIy} uO UOISSNISIP OU SI 88y |

JouQ aJesyyesy
AuD-] 0} pabueys aq pinoys 1sjusd
[edipalN AUO-111 BABY (1S Jey) Suoiaas ||y

"Ao1jod siy) uo uoissnosip ou s| aisy |

OWOL 0} meN
salbojouyse] /sabajinlg
MBaN J0j sjsanbay Lz

aapiwwo) pue Aoljod
Joineyag |euoissa)oid 0z

Aoljod Bulegiiom uerisAyd 61

yjuesissy jeaibing
Isujelpod jueidisAud gl

siaquiay
Aliwe /sispiQ uepisAyd /1L

ddd4d pue 3d4d0
:SS800id MBINSY 1894 9|

sisuonjoeid
yyesH Joj sbej aweN G|

MBIARY pue
JuswdojeAe( sjuawWnooQg
SOUBUIBA0S) JBIS |e2IPSIA v

uofeuswnio(Q
pi0oo8y [BOIPSN ‘€L

O3an
pue jels |eoipajy usamiag
sjoljjuo) jo yjuswsbeuepyz|

ajqisuodsay
(s)uosiag

SuoEPUBWWOIdY
juonoy dn-mojio

uoissnasiq

aido)




L

210270 sSsinuiN Ovd

elano epuUed

eliano) eoued

‘panosdde aiem sapoljod sadnlag
$82IAeS [edlbing 8yl INOILOV

"leaoisdde pieog 10} pJemioy
Bunow ainpaso.d ay) saosdde
0] uojow ay) pepuodas uosuyor
"Jg pue paaow oupnsobeq
Joyoallg ‘parcidde sem

ainpadoid NDIN 8YL :NOILLOV

"S89JAISS |BoIbINg
10j s9191j0d 8y} UO UOISSNISIP OU BIOM BJaY |

*Aoijod siy) Uo UOISSNISIP OU SEM BJBY |

"SI} uleuad B je ajelndde aq Jou

Wb pue Buibueys Ajueisuod ate siaquinu
9S8y} JO swos Se sSMejAq yels [edIpsy

8y} 0} Buuisjal usym Jaquinu uoloasg

8y} N0 8.} 0) papuswwoaal ooy Apor

"Ao1j0d s1y) uo UoISSNISIp OU Sem BJay |
"gouejsisse |ealbins Huipasu seale ay)

0} psppe a1om SaseD 21)0qos pue oujeleg

*Ao1jod siy} Uo UOISSNISIP OU SEM a1y |

"Ao1jod siy} uo uoissNosIp ou sem 19y |

Aoijod Buuojuopy pue
uoneooT ‘adA| eisayisauy ‘|
S92IA19g |eoifing

uolasu| sisysyied sulipiy
pue si19)ayje) jenus)
paussu| Ajesaydusd L
NJIN

eisayjsauy
Buunq sssualemy
aAlesadoenu| papusjuiun/z

saba|inudg Aelodws | "9z

SS9201d
aul4 pue splooay |esipaN
juanbuijeg Joj uoisuadsng ‘gz

aouejsissy |eaibung ‘g

SJUSPN]S [BOIPSN /SMO|jS 4
/SIuapISay jo uoisiniedng gz

sws/Aunauy ailoy
Jo Jieday Jejnoseropuy

10} splepuels-ee

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiad

suolepPUIWWOI3Y
juonoy dn-mojjo4

uoissnasiq

oido}




8

1020 ssnuinN Ovd

ellons eoued

‘lenoidde

pJeogq Jo} psemio) Buinow
sa|o1jod ay) anoidde o} uonow
ay) pepuooas uosuyor “1q

pue psaow oulsobeq 40joali(
‘panoidde alem sainpaooid

pue saoljod seoIAIag S, ualpliyo
pue S, UsWopA 8yl :NOLLOY

‘lenosdde

pJeog 1o} piemio) Buinow
seolo110d ay} anoidde 03 uonow
8y} pspuooas uosuyor “iqg

pue paaow ounsobe(q J030811Q

"8I} JaA0 Japaq bueb si uonendod
SIU) Jo} saunbij 8y} jey} pajou sem }

‘pi0oal [esipaw
S, JBUJ0W 8y} Ul JOU pue PI0s8] UIOgMBU 8L}
Ul 8q ||Im UOBLLIOUI UORD3)109 seb piod ay |

‘Apealje s AqQSo
ul s1 )1 se pajejep bulaq si Adjjod siy |

SH99MA
6€ Jopun AssAlleQg aA08|g

uolIaj|0) Ses) piod

uoisnjuioluwy

2INpad0Id JusSWLONAUT
aAljesadouad ayl

€

c

b
S32IAI0G
LIOGMBN pue S,U3WopA

ul Co_wmtoawcm._._- jusijed-°0l

ainpasoid

dn-19s Nun olu) eny
aInpadolid

Juswisbeuely Ayojes iase
ainpaooid (paniasaidoif))
Buimey] sanep uesH
ainpasold

auiyoe bun yesH
alpnooud juswabeuep
jusned Jase aA3
ainpadold uoljeiedaid
juejdsuel] ‘sesulo) JouoQq
ainpasoid syue |

1€ woe)isAg 18j00)-u9)esH
H3XD0]S JO uonoajusig
ainpasold

ssedAg Aieuowndoipie)
Buunq yuswabeuepy
uonenbeoonuy

‘6

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiag

suoljepuswo2ayy
juonoy dn-mojjo4

uoissnasiqg

oido].

0

——



£10¢v0 s3nuiN Ovd

ISY2YN Jojoauq

"INV 0€:6 1B UoISsas pasoj
ojui ob o} panosdde Ajsnowijueun

SEM )| PUB PBPU0DaS UosSuUyo
1 ‘panow ounsobeq 4030841

"UOISS8G Paso|) O
ob 0} uojow e 10} payse ||aydN 101981

uoisseg paso|n “/

lI9Y2UW JojoauQ

‘us)e} uoioe oN NOILLOVY

"YJuoW SIY} JO} POMBIASI BIOM SIORJUOD ON

S]oB4UOD [BIULD '9

‘lenoudde

pieog Joj psemio} Buiaow
s)jsanbai asay} anosdde 0} uonow
8y} papuosas uosuyor "iq

pue paaow oulsobeq Jojoalqg
‘penoidde alam s)sanbap
Asejnwioj 8yl :NOILOV

‘lenosdde

pieog Joj psemio) sAow 0} panoidde aiam
wiayy Jo |je Ing sisenbai Auejnuuo} asay)
UO UOISSNISIp LUOYS B pey 8 iluuod ay |

"92IAIBS JO

puy yey) Buuayo sseiuedw oo Aue Buiuooues
Jou si DINDL d2uls 1y umo Jay Buuq

0} sey jusaijed ay) ‘uoijos||0d pIod [BIIjIqWIN
8y} Joj Jey) pajelayas saneq uoleys

‘Aojjod siy} UO UOISSNOSIP OU SEM 8J8Yy |

s,Aqsop
ul s uoljew.oyul ||e :paje|ap Bulaq si siy |

*Aoljod SIy} UO UOISSNISIP OU SeM 818y |

Ao110d siy) uo uoissnasIp ou sem alay |

*A2110d S1Y) UO UOISSNOSIP OU SBeM BJaY |

uonun|os

peziingaN uioAwelqo |
sjo|gel e1O suipuadap
BAlleg [ERINY
uaydouljwejaoy
s)ysanbay Asejnuiiog

-aNo

uoN08))0) 8jeAld Bunjueg
poojg plo) [ealiquiny "6

wnuedajuy
:aJe) Jo spiepuels ‘g
eI100)sAQ Jepinoys /2
|jo)soudosiy ‘9
Juswebeuep uiogmaN AIH 'S

juswabeuepy
wnpedenu] AIH v

ajgisuodsay
(s)uosiad

SUolePUSWIWOIDY
juonody dn-mojjo4

uoissnasig

oido])

1




0l

£10¢¥0 seinuinN Ovd

[IBYSHIN 10308l ‘Nd L 12 ¥e psuinofpe Bunasiy juswuinolpy ||
aapIwwo) ay}
lIBUDHIN 1010811 "SJUSWIWIOD ON |  JO S1aquIdp\ WO} SJUSWIWOo) "0l
uolssasg
paso|D ul uaye] uonoy Auy
[IBYDINN J0joauiqg "ua)e} suoljoe ou aJ1am asey] |  Jo uosiadiieyd ay) o syoday ‘6
‘WVLO-LL
l1IdYDNK Jooalqg Je uoissag uad(Q 0} uinjal sdRIUIWOD BY |

uoissag uadQ 0} uinjay

8

ajqisuodsay
(s)uosiad

suonepusWUIoIY
Juonoy dn-mojjo4

uoissnasiq

osidoj

N

-—



L) HEALTH CARE

FOR Y@U

PROFESSIONAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE

May 11, 2017
CONTACT: Sharon Schultz, CNE
Policies and Procedures ] Reason | Recommendations

Patient Care Services Policies & Procedures

3 Year Review,

1. Antimicrobial Stewardship Policy Practice Change

2. Blood Glucose Newborn Monitoring

Standardized Procedure Practice Change

3. Elective Surgery Pre-Admission MRSA 3 Year Review,
Screening Protocol Practice Change

4. Hypoglycemia Management in the Adult 3 Year Review,
Patient Standardized Procedure Practice Change

. sarl . 3 Year Review,

3. Insulin Therapy Administration Procedure Practice Change

6. Insulin, Use of Concentrated NEW

7. Nutrition Education of Patients Policy 3 Year Review

8.  Percutaneous Tracheostomy Assist 3 Year Review
Procedure

3 Year Review,

9. Rapid Response Standardized Procedure Practice Change
10. Sedation Analgesia Used During 3 Year Review,
Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedures Practice Change
11. Self-Administered Continuous
Subcutaneous Infusion of Insulin (Insulin 3 Year Review,
Pump Therapy) for the Acute Care Patient Practice Change
Policy
12. TDAP (Tetanus, Diptheria & Pertussis) 3 Year Review,
Vaccine Standardized Procedure Practice Change

3 Year Review,

13. Titrating Medications, Adult Patients Policy Practice Chantie

Administrative Policies & Procedures

1. Nondiscrimination of patients in Health NEW
Programs and Activities Policy N
2. Policy Procedure Approval for Patient Care NEW
Services and Department Specific
__Unit Specific
Medical Staff
1. Medical Staff Funds 8710-572 NEW

Outpatient Infusion Center

3 Year Review,
Practice Change :
3 Year Review,
Practice Change

1.  Emergency Evacuation

2. Fire Alarm Evacuation Plan

Women & Newborn Services
1.  Medication Administration, NICU -
Combined

DELETE

Formulary Requests

Page 10of 2

13



L) HEALTH CARE

FOR Y@U

PROFESSIONAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE

May 11, 2017
CONTACT: Sharon Schuitz, CNE

Policies and Procedures [ Reason Recommendations
Remove from
1. Cepastat Formulary

Remove from

2.  Donnatal Formulary
3 Urea Addition to
) Formulary
| Pre-Printed Orders
1. Anticoagulation Orders 8711-4518 DELETE
2. Laparoscopic Surgery Orders 8711-4542 DELETE ]
3.  MRI Contrast Medication Orders Practice Change

Page 2 of 2



‘@) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

| PATIENT CARE SERVICES ROLICY-MANUAL

| 1ISSUE DATE: 10/10 SUBJECT: ANHBIOTIC-ANTIMICROBIAL

STEWARDSHIP

REVISION DATE: 05/13 POLICY NUMBER: IV.WW

Department Approval: 12/16

Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 05/1301/17

Nurse Executive Council Approval: 05M1302/17

Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: n/a

Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee: 05/4303/17

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 06/1304/17

Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 07/13

Board of Directors Approval: 07/13

A PURPOSE:

1. To provide a process in order to promote judicious use of antimicrobials

2. The goals of the Antimicrobial Stewardship Program (ASP) include, but are not limited to:
a. Minimize adverse effects and events secondary to the use of antimicrobial agents.
b. Reduce, minimize, and/or prevent the emergence of resistant microorganisms.

15



| Patient Care Services Rolicy-Manual
Antibiotic Stewardship, IV.WW

Page 2 of 4

B. POLICY:

1. A physician supervised multidisciplinary antimicrobial stewardship workgroup shall
evaluate the judicious use of antimicrobials in accordance with guidelines established by
the federal government and professional organizations.

2. Antimicrobial stewardship activities, outcomes, and all quality indicators shall be
reported quarterly by the Infectious Disease physician or pharmacist to the Pharmacy
Therapeutics Committee and Infection Control.

C. PROCEDURE:
1. Antimicrobial Stewardship Workgroup:
a.

Clinicians:

i. A single physician leader, knowledgeable in the area of infectious
diseases, responsible for program outcomes.

ii. A pharmacist leader, knowledgeable in the area of infectious diseases, will
co-lead the program.

Infection Control:

i. Infection control activities

ii. Quality indicators (C. difficile, MDRO, device related infections, procedure
related infections, etc)

Information Systems:

i. Computerized alerts &and warnings

ii. Data generation and reporting

Microbiology:

i. Culture and sensitivity reporting/alerting

ii. Annual antibiogram

16



| Patient Care Services Policy-Manual
Antibiotic Stewardship, IV.WW

Page 3 of 4

e.

a0

Administration:
i. Financial support of program

2. Antimicrobial Stewardship Activities:
a.

Prospective audit and feedback conducted by pharmacist leader in conjunction

with physician leader.

i This process involves prospectively reviewing the use of antimicrobial
agents and contacting the prescriber with recommendations for optimizing
current antimicrobial therapy on an individual patient.

Development and implementation of a restricted antibiotic policy (Refer to

Pharmacy policy “Restricted Antimicrobials”).

Surveillance and trending of antimicrobial use patterns and quality indicators.

Education to clinicians and staff:

i Development of evidence based, institution-specific guidelines for the
treatment of common infections-.

Other activities:

i. IV to Oral route conversion program.

Hi. Renal dose adjustment of antimicrobials.

ii-ii.  Preparation of retrospective reviews (i.e. Medication Use Evaluation).

B-D. REFERENCES:
1. Barlam TF, Cosgrove SE, Abbo LM, et al. Implementing an Antibiotic Stewardship
Program: Guidelines by the Infectious Diseases Society of America and the Society for
Healthcare Epidemiology of America. Clin Infect Dis 2016; 62:e51.
4+2.  Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Core Elements of Hospital Antibiotic
Stewardship Programs. http://www.cdc.gov/getsmart/healthcare/implementation/core-
elements.html (Accessed on December 12, 2016).

17



Patient Care Services Reliey-Manual
Antibiotic Stewardship, IV.WW
Page 4 of 4

18



@‘9 Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California
PATIENT CARE SERVICES
STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE: BLOOD GLUCOSE NEWBORN MONITORING

l. POLICY:
A. Function: To screen blood glucose (BG) levels in infants of diabetic mothers, late-preterm,
small for gestational age, large for gestational age, and term symptomatic infantsat-risk
- i } j in order to correct or
manage neonatal hypoglycemia.
B. Circumstances: Infants 36 0/7-36 6/7 weeks -up to term, infants at high-risk, or symptomatic
term infants with no risk factors.
1. Setting: Labor and Delivery (L&D), Transition Nursery and Mother Baby
C. Background: Neonatal glucose concentrations decrease after birth, to as low as 30 mg/dL
during the first 1 to 2 hours after birth, and then increase to higher concentrations, generally
above 45 mg/dL by 12 hours after birth.
| D. See Patient Care Services (PCS) Glucose Point of Care (POC) Testing using the Nova Stat
Strip Blood Glucose Meter Procedure for step by step instructions for blood glucose machine.

I PROCEDURE:
A. Identify infants at risk and implement monitoring as appropriate.
| 1. POC BG is performed for the following at-risk-infants classified as at risk:
a. Infants of diabetic mothers (IDM)
| b. Large for gestational age (LGA) infants (greater than or equal to 4 kg or 8lbs:
130z)

intrauterine Growth Restriction (IUGR) infants
Infants with signs and symptoms of hypoglycemia: (irritability, tremors,

(Q-hr
0
o
7]
i
§l
3
3
& ¢
3
-y
(/]
]
o~~~
«Q
(]
&
-
-
=
[\V]
3
-
N
s
D
[0)
8
(/)]
«Q
[0
&
=t
(]
3
g’

floppiness, cyanosis, apnea and poor feeding
2. Monitoring and treatment is based on hours of age,-and risk factors, and symptoms.
B. Feed at risk infants by 1 hour of age. If unable to feed in the first hour, notify provider
immediately.

C. Perform initial POC BG screen 30 minutes after theinitia- first feedir;g by performing a heel
stick per PCS Collection of Blood Specimen by Skin Puncture procedure.

ann - al-Ta a¥la alda o or.-orde a

hours of age

D. From birth to 4

hours screening the glucose prior to each feed

c. Small for gestational age (SGA) infants (less than or equal to 2.5 kg or 5Ibs; 90z)
d. Late Preterm (LPT) infants — (36 0/7 to 36 6/7 weeks gestation) the-gestational

jitteriness, exaggerated Moro reflex, a high-pitched cry, seizures, lethargy,

1. Utilize breastfeeding first. -and-then if-beingSupplement with formula if needed.-fed-do

1. If infant is symptomatic with a POC BG less than 40, call provider for assessment
or NICU consuilt.

2. If infant is asymptomatic, but falls into one of the risk factor categories above:
a. If POC BG is greater than or equal to 40 continue feeds every 2 to three

214, 09/16 05/15, 01/17 | 05/15, 02/17

19



Patient Care Services

Standardized Procedure: Blood Glucose Newbom Monitoring
| Page2of4

b.

If initial screen is less than or equal to 39/dL, re-feed immediately, and re-
check POC BG 1 hour after feed ends.

kiv.

If follow-up POC BG is less than 25 mg/dL, call provider for
assessment or NICU consult.

If follow up POC BG is 25-39mg/d|, re-feed immediately, and re-
check POC BG 1 hour after feed ends.

If at any time the POC BG falls below 405mg/di, re-feed immediately,
and re-check POC BG 1 hour after feed ends and continue to follow
the steps above based on the POC BG result.

if follow up POC BG is greater than or equal to 40mg/dl, continue
feeds every 2-3 hours and screen POC BG prior to each feed until 3
consecutive values greater or equal to 45mg/dl are achieved not
counting the initial POC BG.

E. From 4 hours to 24 hours of age:

If pre-prandial screen is greater than or equal to 45, continue to check POC BG
prior to each feed until 3 consecutive values greater than or equal to 45 mg/dL are
achieved not counting the initial POC BG

If pre-prandial screen is less than or equal to 44 mg/dL, re-feed immediately, and
re-check POC BG 1 hour after feed ends.

If follow-up POC BG is less than 35 mg/dL, 1 hour after feed ends, then call
provider for assessment or NICU consuilt.

If pre-prandial screen is 35-44 to mg/dL, re-feed immediately and re-check
POC BG 1 hour after feed ends.

If follow up POC BS is greater than or equal to 45 mg/dL, continue to
monitor POC BG prior to each feed until 3 consecutive values greater than
or equal to 45mg/dL are achieved not counting the initial POC BG.

1.

b.

DOCUMENTATION:

Blood glucose results in the electronic health record (EHR)

Patient assessment and response to feeding or interventions

Any complications or adverse side effects

Provider notification and follow-up orders for any critical lab value.

When administering medications or implementing orders from a standardized procedure the

moow»

nurse shall enter the orders electronically unless a screening process triggers the appropriate
order(s).

20



Patient Care Services
Standardized Procedure: Blood Glucose Newbormn Monltoring
Page 3 of 4

V.

VI.

VIl.

VIIL.

REQUIREMENTS FOR CLINICIANS INITIATING STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:
B-A. Education: Current California Licenseen-hire

G-B. Initial Evaluation: New Hire Orientationon-hire

B-C. Ongoing Evaluation: annually with Skills Lab

DEVELOPMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

A Method: This Standardized Procedure was developed through collaboration with Nursing,
Medicine, and Administration.

B. Review: Every two (2) years.

CLINICIANS AUTHORIZED TO PERFORM THIS STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:
A. All healthcare providers in Women and Newborn Services who have successfully completed
requirements as outlined above are authorized to direct and perform.

RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

A. Blood Glucose Newborn -Screening and Management Guidelines of Glucose
Homeostasis in Infants of Diabetic Mothers (IDM), Late-Preterm (LPT), Small for
Gestational Age (SGA), Large for Gestational Age (LGA), and Term Symptomatic Infants

A-B. PCS Glucose POC Testing using the Nova Stat Strip Blood Glucose Meter Procedure

B-C. PCS Collection of Blood Specimen by Skin Puncture procedure

REFERENCES:
A. American Academy of Pediatrics. (2011). Postnatal Glucose Homeostasis in Late Preterm and
Term Infants. Pediatrics. 127(3): 575-579. Retrieved online from pediatrics.aapublications.org.

21



Patient Care Services
Standardized Procedure: Blood Glucose Newborn Monitoring

| Page 4of4

Screening and Management Guidelines of Glucose Homeostasis in Infants of Diabetic
Mothers (IDM), Late-Preterm (LPT), Small for Gestational Age (SGA), Large for
Gestational Age (LGA), and Term Symptomatic Infants

Infant is: SGA — < 5% weight (2.5 kg or 5 Ibs 9 0z) LPT - 36 0/7-36 6/7 wks GA
LGA -2 95% weight (4 kg or 8 Ibs 13 0z) IDM
r'd v
Symptomatic? with BS < 40 mg/dL Asymptomatic

Call provider for Birth %o 4 hrs'of Age

Assessment or
NICU Consult for - Initial feed within 1 hr (call 'MD if Ginable to feed w1thm the 1“st hour)

possible admit « Check Glucose 30 min after 1%t feed

[T T

é * Re-feed now

g Check Glucose in 1hr

e B T o i S e e

Call provider for poesnes K ey e T_ _-__l _______

Assessment or BS <25mg/dL | E BS 25-39 mg/dL
NICU Consult for | ekieedebeleletialab bt b Tl
possible admit

s -Continue feeds q 2-3 hrs -
. Screeh glt1cose prior to each feed

R R B Continue “pre-feed” (AC)
Re-feed now glucose monitoring until 3

Call provider for
Assessment or !
NICU Consuilt for e Check Glucose in 1hr consecutive values z 45 mg/dL

possible admit — T not including initial BS

1Symptoms of hypoglycemiainclude: irritability, tremors, jitteriness, high pitched cry, seizures, lethargy, floppiness, cyanosis,
apnea, and poor feeding (applicable to any infant showing symptoms of hypoglycemia).

Further management of symptomatic infants is at the discretion of the provider based on severity of symptoms and risk
factors. May utilize the same management algorithm for asymptomatic patients as guidance or reference.

*This algorithm serves only as a screening and management guideline. At any time the practitioner may deviate from the

guidelines noted above.
Updated 5/5/16

ebe jo sy ¢ 0} yig

abe jo siy pz 0y say ¢

22



2
‘C‘) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

STANDARDIZED-PROGCEDURES-MANUALPATIENT CARE SERVICES

STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE: ELECTIVE SURGERY PRE-ADMISSION MRSA SCREENING

l POLICY:

A.

To prevent and control the spread of Methicillin Resistant Staphylococcus aureus (MRSA), an
Infection Control MRSA Screening Protocol has been established. Antimicrobial resistant
pathogens such as MRSA have become a common hospital and community problem. Identified
antibiotic resistance is one of the key microbial threats to health in the United States, and
decreasing the inappropriate use of anti-microbial is a primary solution to address this threat.
The initiation of a screening and surveillance program is one of the CDC’s-{Center for Disease
Control and Prevention} (CDC’s) top priorities to eradicate MRSA.
Tri-City Medical Center (TCMC) has developed a MRSA protocol based on evidence-based
practice to prevent anti-microbial resistance in the community as well as the health care setting
based on CDC guidelines, recommendations, and other scientific research. It is the goal of Tri-
City Medical Center to:
1. Perform active surveillance testing by screening ef all patients scheduled for the
following elective procedures at their pre-operative education appointment:-having

a. Total hip arthroplasty
b. Total knee arthroplasty
c. Total shoulder arthroplasty (Primary and Reverse)
d. Instrumented cervical spine procedures
e. Instrumented lumbar spine procedures

2. Educate the abeve-pepulation-ofapplicable patients and their families about MRSA and
its precautions.

3. Implement Contact Precautions per isolation protocol for patients who are colonized or
infected.

Il. PURPOSE:

A

B.

To ensure that patients who are known or suspected to be at risk for infection, or have
demonstrated colonization with MRSA are appropriately managed based on approved protocol
to reduce post-operative surgical site infections (SSls).

To decrease the incidence of post-operative surgical site infections (SSls).

Il DEFINITION(S):

A

Carrier - a person who is colonized with methicillin-resistant-Staphyloceccus-aureusMRSA. The

organism may be present in the nares (nose), sputum, urine, an open wound, the stool, or on
the skin, without clinical manifestations of the disease. A carrier may transmit the organism to
another person through direct contact, usually via contact with the hands.

Colonization - Presence of MRSA on tissue without the presence of symptoms or clinical
manifestations of illness or infection. A carrier is colonized with MRSA.

Decolonization - Elimination of MRSA carrier state through the use of infection control measures
and/or antibiotics. This decreases the risk of transmission to high-risk individuals (immune-
compromised or otherwise highly susceptible persons) or to others in an outbreak situation.
Eradication - Elimination of infections and/or colonization of MRSA in a facility through
implementation of infection control and hygiene measures and/or antibiotics.

12113

nd;

1/14, 04/16 | 1/14, 04/16 11116 1/14, 02117 5/14, 04/117 5/14, 04117 514

23



Standardized-Precedure-ManualPatient Care Services
Standardized Procedure: High-Risk-Elective Surgery Pre-Admission MRSA Screening Rrotess!

Page 2 of 5

E. Infection - Invasion and multiplication of MRSA in tissue with the manifestation of clinical
symptoms of infection such as white blood cell counts, fever, lesions, furuncles, drainage from a
break in skin integrity, and erythema. Infection warrants treatment.

F. Invasive Disease - Clinical manifestation of symptoms caused by MRSA such as furuncles,
cellulitis, pneumonia, carbuncles, septicemia, osteomyelitis or vascular line infection.

G. Methicillin-Resistant Staphylococcus aureus (MRSA) - A gram-positive bacteria that grows in
cluster formation, like grapes; growth of MRSA is not inhibited by methicillin or oxacillin, and
many other antibiotics.

H. Screen - A nasal swab collected on or before admission to the hospital or operating room to
determine whether a patient is colonized with MRSA.

R Culture - A specimen that can be collected from various sites on a patient's body (i.e.: nose,
perineum, groin, wound, sputum, anus, etc.), though usually from the nose/nostrils to determine
the presence of MRSA organisms.

J. Surgical Site Infection (SSI) - infection of superficial surgical incision involving skin or
subcutaneous tissue, deep incision involving fascia and/or muscular layers, and organs. TCMC

| follows the moust current version of the CDC/National Healthcare Safety Network (NHSN)
definitions of infection.

K. Surveillance - Monitoring of patient data to determine incidence and prevalence of infections
and dlstnbutlon ina facmty

V. PROCEDURE:

A. To the extent possible, patients scheduled for the following elective procedures shall be
screened via nasal swab at minimum 10 days prior to date of surgery with the intention of
maximizing preventative practices such as decolonization of MRSA.

1. Total hip arthroplasty

2. Total knee arthroplasty

3. Total shoulder arthroplasty (Primary and Reverse)
4, Instrumented cervical spine procedures

5. Instrumented lumbar spine procedures

B. The Registered Nurse (RN) conducting the patient’s pre-operative appointment shall obtain
nares culture and enter the order for nasal swab via Computerized Provider Order Entry.

1. Patients who are screened for MRSA shall receive education on MRSA decolonization in
the event the culture is positive (see Patient Information on MRSA Screening and
Decolonization).

C. The results of the nasal swab will be communicated to the patient's provider.

1. The provider/provider’s office will notify the patient of positive results and provide
necessary prescriptions and additional patient education.
| v. PROCEDURE FOR NARES CULTURES:

EVI.

| HviL,

mo owm »

Swab both nares with attention to swabbing the anterior portion of the nares.

1. Use one culturette swab for both nares.

Swab nose using same swab to both nostrils being careful not to touch outside of nose.

Insert swab 2 — 1 inch into nares gently rotating swab in a clockwise then counter clockwise 2 —
5 times pressing gently into the nasal septum.

Return swab into transport medium being careful not to touch sides of container.

Label the culture in accordance with Patient Care Services procedure, Specimen Handling and
include “rule out MRSA," this allows the lab to screen for only this organism.

RESOURCES-AVAILABLE ONINTRANETRELATED DOCUMENTS:

A.

Patient Information on MRSA Screening and Decolonization

SURVEILLANCE OF SURGICAL SITE INFECTIONS:

24



Standardized-Rrocedure-ManualPatient Care Services
Standardized Procedure: High-Risk-Elective Surgery Pre-Admission MRSA Screening Rrotecel

Page 3 of 5

A Surgical site infection surveillance is done as required by the California Department of Public
Health (CDPH) using the most recent CDC/ NHSN protocols. Data is entered into the
CDC/NHSN database and is published annually by CDPH. Data reports can be provided by
Infection Prevention and Control to departments or committees upon request.

HEVIH. REQUIREMENTS FOR CLINICANS INITIATING STANDARDIZED:

BAIX.

X,

MEXIL

A Initial training and annual validation through Skills Lab

DEVELOPMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

A. This procedure has been developed by the-Clinisal-Manager-ef-Surgical Services-and-Rre-
Operative-Eduscation, with approval from the Senior Director of Nursing, the Department of
Orthopedics, the Department of Anesthesia, and the Operating Room (OR) Committee.

CLINICIANS AUTHORIZED TO PERFORM THIS STANDARDZIED PROCEDURE:
A. RN's in the Pre-Operative Admission Area (Pre op Hold) and Pre-Operative Education (Pre op
Teach) Departments

REFERENCES:
A Chicago Journals (2008). Strategies to Prevent Surgical Site Infections in Acute Care
Hospitals. Infection Control and Hospital Epidemiology, 29(1) S51-

S$61 http://chfs.ky.gov/nrirdonlyres/ff8bdcc5-441a-4067-9666-

8a39588df232/0/sheassicompendium2008.pdf
A-B. Bebko, S.P., Green, D.M., Awad, S.S. (2015) Effect of a Preoperative Decontamination

Protocol on Surgical Slte Infections in Patients Undergoing Elective Orthopedic Surgery
with Hardware Implantation. JAMA Surg, 150(5), 390-395

doi:10.1001/jamasurg.2014.3480 http://jamanetwork.com/journals/jamasurgery/fullarticle/

2173311

25



Standardized-Rrocedure-ManualPatient Care Services
Standardized Procedure: High-Risk-Elective Surgery Pre-Admission MRSA Screening Preteso!
Page 4 of 5

MRSA Screening and Decolonization
Orthopaedic and Spine Institute

What is MRSA?
*  MRSA stands for Methiciliin-resistant Staphylococcus aureus (MRSA). MRSA is a germ that does not go
away with standard, “first-line” antibiotics. The germs colonize (stay in your body, usually nostils) and
can be present without causing infection.

Who should be screened for MRSA?
¢ All patients having scheduled surgery with placement of a permanent implantable device should be
screened.

How do you know if you are a MRSA carrier?
e By doing cultures of your nostrils at least 7-10 days before your surgery we can determine if
decolonization is appropriate for you. If have a positive result, your physician will provide with you a
prescription for a medication called Mupirocin.

What does a positive result mean to me?
¢ Presence of this bacteria does not necessarily mean that you have an infection, or that it is going to
cause you harm. However, sometimes decolonization is appropriate as a precautionary measure to
help prevent infection post-operatively.

What is the decolonization process?
There are some simple things that can be done fo decrease the number of germs present:

e 2% chlorhexidine showers- Patients who are positive for MRSA will be instructed to wash with 2%
chlorhexidine (Hibiclens) solution ddily for 5 days prior to hospital admission.

e Bactroban 2% nasal ointment (Mupirocin) twice a day for 5-7 consecutive days.

e Clean your sheets, clothing, and home- Wear clean washed clothing daily for 5 days. Wash sheets twice
or more during the 5-7 days leading up fo surgery. Wash eating utensils well after each use. Skin cells
that are carrying MRSA are continvously shed and may collect in clothing, bed linen, and eating
utensils, so it is important to keep these things clean.

Instructions for CHG (chlorhexidine gluconate) wash

¢ Shower with CHG (chlorhexidine) soap for § days betore your surgery, the night before your surgery, and
again the morning of your surgery.
¢ Wash your hair as usual with your normal shampoo.
After wetting your body, step away from the water, pour half the bottle of CHG soap onto a wet wash
cloth and apply soap to body, only from the neck down.
DO NOT use the CHG soap on face, hair or genitals to avoid irritation to those areas.
Important: Leave the CHG soap on for a minimum of 5 minutes. Rinse well.
Dry with a fresh, clean, dry towel.
Repeat this process the morning of your surgery.
Put on fresh, clean clothes.
Do not shave anywhere on your body, other than face, for two days before surgery to avoid skin
irritation.
¢ Do not use lotion, powder, perfume or aftershave after your showers.
Note: If you are allergic fo chlorhexidine, you may shower with an over the counter antibacterial soap that does
not irritate your skin.

Instructions for application of intfranasal ointment (mupirocin 2%)
e Wash your hands before and after applying the ointment.
e Put a pea sized amount on a cotton applicator and apply to the inside of your nostril. Repeat for the
other nostril.

26



Standardized-Procadure-ManualPatient Care Services
Standardized Procedure: High-Risk-Elective Surgery Pre-Admission MRSA Screening Protecsl
Page 6 of 5

e Do not reuse the cofton tip after it has been inserted in your nostril. Use the “clean” end of the cotton
applicator, or use a new one for the second nostril.

o After application, press the nostrils together and release repeatedly for 1 minute to distribute the
ointment throughout the nose.
Wash your hands.
Do not use any medicines inside the nose (such as nasal sprays) during the 5-7 days you are using the
ointment.

¢ This must be repeated 2 times a day for 5 days.

Family and friends

MRSA is not a risk for healthy people. There are no restrictions on normal social contact or activities, and you
are not a risk to other members of your family or friends. If there are any activities that you are concerned
about, i.e. your work or a visit to a hospital or care home please contact your surgeon for advice.

Any questions, contact your surgeon

27



2
(cv) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES
STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE: HYPOGLYCEMIA MANAGEMENT IN THE ADULT PATIENT
POLICY:
A. Function: Management of the adult patient with hypoglycemia.
B. Circumstances:
1. Setting: Tri-City Medieal-Genter Healthcare District using hospital approved point of
care blood glucose meter
C. Excludes: Patients on intravenous insulin infusion.
ASSESSMENT:
A. Assess patient for hypoglycemia:
1. Blood glucose less than 70 mg/dL with or without symptoms.
2. Early adrenergic symptoms may include pallor, diaphoresis, tachycardia, shakiness,
hunger, anxiety, irritability, headache, dizziness
3. Later neuroglycopenic symptoms may include confusion, slurred speech, irrational or

uncontrollable behavior, extreme fatigue, disorientation, loss of consciousness, seizures,
pupillary sluggishness, decreased response to noxious stimuli.

TREATMENT-FOR BDIABETIC PATIENT:
A. Treat if the point of care (POC) blood glucose is:

1. iLess than 70 mg/dL: for the diabetic patient, non-diabetic patient and outpatient
A<2.  Less than 60 mg/dL for the pregnant patient during all phases of the pregnancy
B. If patient is conscious and able to tolerate oral intake, give one 15 gram tube of glucose gel. -May

give 4 ounces orange or apple juice if patient refuses glucose gel.

1.

If the POC blood glucose was less than 50 mg/dL give an additional 15 gram tube of
glucose gel (total of 30 grams of glucose gel). May give additional 4 ounces orange
or apple juice if patient refuses glucose gel (total of 8 ounces orange or apple

juice).

2C. If patient is NPO or unable to tolerate oral intake or has a decreased level of consciousness,
administer:

1.

30 mL of 50% Dextrose intravenously (IV) at a rate of 10mL per minute.

a. If the POC blood glucose was less than 50 mg/dL give an additional 20 mL of

50% dextrose (total of 50 mL of 50% dextrose)

b:2.  If no IV access, Glucagon 1 mg subcutaneously (SQ) or intramuscularly (IM) times one
(do not repeat).
D. Recheck POC blood glucose in 15-30 minutes after treatment.
1. If greater than 70 mg/dL, no additional treatment required.
3:2.  If still less than 70 mg/dL:

a. Repeat above treatment

-

b. Obtain serum blood glucose to veri blood

glucose level

c. If repeated POC blood glucose and initial POC blood glucose was less than

50 mg/dL notify physician and request a 10% dextrose infusion

4-E.  Notify the attending physician/AHP immediately only if treatment is ineffective, otherwise notify

physician of hypoglycemic episode(s) prior to next dose of scheduled insulin or hypoglycemic

E73

Nuix abe

TR Ty N i
bl ol R | oot
09/12, 4115, | 0912, 4115, | 05/15,12/16, | 11/12, 05/5; | 0113, 09/15, | 02/13, 09/15, ,
0812 01117 02117 02117 03117 04117 04/17 10115 02/13; 10115

28



Patient Care Services
Standardized Procedure: Hypoglycemia Management In the Adult Patient
Page 2 of 3

B-F.

agent.
Treatment of serum (lab draw) blood glucose if less than 70mg/dL:

Because serum blood glucose is resulted at least 40 minutes (or more) after the blood is
drawn, recheck with POC blood glucose prior to treatment. If less than 70 mg/dL, treat as
outlined above.

1.

DOCUMENTATION:
Document the following:

A.

1.
2.

Document patient symptoms, glucose values, treatments, and patient's response to
treatment and physician notification in the medical record.

When administering medications or implementing orders from a standardized procedure,
the Registered Nurse shall enter the medication/order into the electronic health record as
a standardized procedure.

a. Not required if a screening process triggers the order.

Document administration of medications on the Medication Administration Record

29



Patient Care Services
Standardized Procedure: Hypoglycemia Management In the Adult Patient
Page 3 of 3

REQUIREMENTS FOR CLINICIANS PROVIDING INTERVENTIONS:

Current California RN license.

Education and Training: Blood glucose analysis training using blood glucose monitoring device
including hypoglycemia management.

Initial Evaluation: Orientation

Ongoing Evaluation: Annual blood glucose monitoring device review with return demonstration
and hypoglycemia management.

oo w»

DEVELOPMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

A. Method: This Standardized Procedure was developed through collaboration with Nursing,
Medicine, and Administration.

B. Review: Every two (2) years.

c

CLINICIANS AUTHORIZED TO PERFORM THIS STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:
A. All Registered Nurses (RNs) who have successfully completed requirements as outlined above
are authorized to direct and perform Hypoglycemia Management Standardized Procedure.

REFERENCES:

A. California Diabetes and Pregnancy Program Sweet Success: Guidelines for Care. 2012.
California Department of Public Health.

B. Rule of 15 endorsed by the ADA and Mayo Clinic, Complete Nurses Guide to Diabetes Care,
second edition, ADA, 2009.

C. Diabetes Spectrum Volume 18, Number 1, 2005.

D. Hospital Practice, 2016, Volumen 44, No. 1, 1-8.

B-E. Clinical Diabetes, Volume 34, Number 4, Fall 2016, American Diabetes Association.

30



(G.) Trl-Clty Medical Center Distribution: Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE: INSULIN THERAPY ADMINISTRATION

Purpose: To outline the nursing management of patients requiring insulin via intravenous (IV)
infusion and/or subcutaneously.

Supportive Data:  Only regular insulin is administered intravenously. All insulin drips will be delivered by an
infusion control pump. All insulin drips are mixed by the Pharmacy except in emergent or
urgent situations. An insulin syringe must be used when preparing insulin for
administration. Insulin (or any other additive) shall never be added to 1V solutions that are
already hanging or infusing.

Equipment: 1. IV infusion control pump and tubing
2. Labels for 1V tubing and insulin solution
A PROCEDURE FOR INSULIN DRIP MANAGEMENT:

1. Obtain baseline blood glucose.

2, Verify physician/Allied Healthcare Professional (AHP) order.

3. Administer regular insulin via continuous infusion pump.
a. Attach pre-mixed insulin drip bag to IV pump tubing with date-change label
b. Prime tubing
c. Connect |V tubing to pump
d. Program infusion rate (concentration is 100 units regular insulin per 100 mL of 0.9%

sodium chloride) using infusion pump Guardrails™;

Verify the following for accuracy with another registered nurse (RN) when hanging a new

IV insulin bag and/or changing the rate of an insulin infusion:

i Pre-mixed insulin |V bag from pharmacy or insulin concentration when preparing
the insulin drip urgently

i Initial infusion rate

iii. Blood glucose

f. Connect tubing to infusion site
Document in the electronic healthmedical record (EHR) {initiation of insulin order and
include second witness {see Patient Care Services (PCS) Medication Administration
Policy).

Monitor blood glucose as ordered by physisianphysician/AHP and PRN.

Check blood glucose one hour after discontinuing an insulin drip, then every 2 hours times 2 or

as ordered by the physicianphysician/AHP.

6. Document blood glucose in medicalrecordEHR.

7. Administer subcutaneous insulin injection two hours prior to discontinuing an insulin drip as
ordered by physisianphysician/AHP.

o

o s

B. PROCEDURE FOR SUBCUTANEOUS INSULIN MANAGEMENT:

Examples of Subcutaneous Insulin Onset Ap proxlmatclapl'::e of AcuonDuration
Rapid-acting
¢ Humalog (lispro) 5 — 15 minutes 0.5~ 2 hours 2 -5 hours
¢ Novolog (aspart)
Short-acting 0.5— 1 hour
o Humulin R® (regular) ) 2 -5 hours 4 - 8 hours
* Novolin R® (regular)
Intermediate-acting
e Humulin N® (NPH, isophane suspension) 1 -2 hours 4 - 12 hours 10 — 24 hours
¢ Novolin N® (NPH, isophane suspension)
Long-acting
e Lantus® (glargine) 43 - 42 hours None to slight ~24 hours
¢ Levemir® (detemir) :

7 Climical T Wedical
* ‘Revia ”Pgﬁ‘j;%{ cs | Execufive
s derevaen U Procedures’ - Comi ﬁeﬁ 22726
3/93; 9/08;
Photas 12/11;12/13, 1/12;3/14, . X
11/(:11{(:%/13 10/16, 02117 10116, 02/17 12/16 03/17 0417 2/12;4/14 2/12;4/14




| Patient Care Services-Presedure-Manual
Insulin Therapy Administration

Page 2 of 4

o~

1.

If the licensed nurse administering the insulin did not perform the blood glucose test
they must verify the blood glucose in the EHR or glucose meter before
admlnlstratlon 5 ;

4. Insulm is tlme sensntlve and must be glven wnth 30 mmutes of the blood glucose
test. If it has been greater than 30 minutes the blood glucose must be re-checked
before the insulin administration.

Patients who are NPO and/or receiving parenteral nutrition or continuous tube feeding will have

their blood glucose levels checked and correction insulin administered every 4 to 6 hours (0600,

Patients receiving meals will have their blood glucose levels checked and insulin administered

before meals (AC) and at bedtime (HS) (0800, 1130, 1730, 2100) unless otherwise ordered.

a. Patients that are scheduled for early morning dialysis will also have their blood glucose
levels checked and insulin administration at 0600 just before their early breakfast trays
arrive.

Administer short-acting (regular) insulin 30 minutes before the meal for which it was ordered.

ALWAYS-aAdminister rapid-acting insulin just prior to the meal with meals per physician/AHP

orders.

Lantus® (glargine) or Levemir® (detemir) is usually dosed once daily at bedtime or twice a day

at 0800 and 2100. Even though Lantus® and Levemir® are clear insulins, do not mix with other

insulins.

Do not massage injection site after injecting insulin.

Administration from vials:

a. Slngle Dose of Insulin:

i. Verify correct type and dosage of insulin.

ii. Check expiration date on insulin vial (see Ratient-Care-ServicesPCS Medication
Administration Policy).

iii. Mix intermediate-acting insulin, (NPH, isophane) by gently rolling the bottle
between hands. (Do not shake). Do NOT mix Lantus® or Levemir® with other
insulins.

iv. After cleaning the top of the vial with an alcohol swab, withdraw dose as ordered
by physisianphysician/AHP after inserting air equal to the insulin dose into the
vial.

vi-v.  Inject insulin subcutaneously, preferably into abdomen.

wikvi. Document in medrea#reeeFdEHR-and-mekade—seeeneLwrtness-(see-Rahent-care

b. Mixed Doses of Insulin (i.e., NPH + regular) in same syringe:
i. Do NOT mix Lantus® or Levemir® with other insulins
ii. Verify correct types and dosages of insulins
iii. Check expiration dates on insulin vials. (see Patiert-Care-ServicesPCS
Medication Administration Policy).

iv. Clean the tops of both vials with an alcohol swab.

V. Draw up an amount of air equal to the total amount of insulin ordered.

vi. First inject the amount of air equal to the intermediate-acting insulin into that vial.
Do not withdraw any insulin at this time.

vil. Next inject the rest of the air into the vial of short- or rapid-acting insulin. Do not
remove the needle from the vial. Withdraw the dose of short- or rapid-acting
insulin.

32



| Patient Care Services-Rrocedure-Manual
Insulin Therapy Administration

Page 3 of 4

9.

Insulin
a.

beviii. Insert the needle into the intermediate-acting insulin vial and withdraw the
intermediate-acting dose.

*-ix. Inject insulin subcutaneously, preferably into abdomen.

xkx.  Document in medical-recordEHR-and-include-second-withess{see-Patient- Care
Services-Medication-AdministrationPeliey).

Pens:

Policy:

i. Insulin pens are for single patient use only and should not be shared with other
patients.

i, Un-used Insulin pens are returned to pharmacy when patient is discharged per
PCS Medication Administration Policy.

iii. Insulin pens must be primed before each injection.

iv. A new pen needle is used for each administration of insulin. Never use a syringe
to withdraw insulin from an insulin pen.

V. Insulin pens expire 28 days from date dispensed per Pharmacy label and are
stored in the patient specific bins per PCS Medication Administration Policy.

Procedure:

i. Check expiration date on insulin pen.

i. Verify the insulin pen label matches the type of insulin ordered.

iii. Verify the patient’s name and medical-recerdEHR number matches the patient
name and medicalreserdEHR number on the insulin pen. (Insulin pens are for
single patient use only).

iv. Remove pen cap from the insulin pen.

V. Clean the rubber seal on the tip of the pen with an alcohol swab.

vi. Pop the label and twist to remove the cap on the Auteshieldsafety pen needle.

vii. Line up the Autoshieldsafety pen needle with the insulin pen, keeping the needle
straight while pushing and then screwing the needle in clockwise onto the rubber
seal.

viii. Pull the cover of the Autoshieldsafety pen needle straight off. Do not touch the
white shield.

ix. Prime the needle by dialing up a dose of 2 units

X. Hold the pen with the Auteshieldsafety pen needle pointing upward.

xi. Tap the insulin reservoir to make any air bubbles rise up toward the needle.

Xii. Press the injection button all the way in and check to be sure insulin comes out of
the needle tip.

xii.  If insulin does not come out of the Auteshieldsafety pen needle, repeat priming
steps up to three times before changing the pen needle and trying again.

xiv.  If you are still unsuccessful, you may need another insulin pen.

XV. After priming make sure the dial window reads “0” and then dial in the dose of
lnsulln

Xvi. : ;

NOTE If you d|aI past the deswed
dose, dial the pen back down to the desnred prescribed dose.

xvii.  Select the area of the body for the subcutaneous injection preferably into the
abdomen.

xviii.  Clean the selected site with alcohol.

xix.  In one continuous motion, insert the needle into the flat skin at a 90-degree angle

until the plastisc-Auteshieldsafety pen needle clicks-
the-insulin-eartridge. Your thumb should not be on the injection button during this
step.

33



| Patient Care Services-Rrocedure-Manual
Insulin Therapy Administration
Page 4 of 4

G-D.

XX. Maintaining constant pressure, deliver the dose slowly by pressing the injection
button with your thumb all the way in, then fer-a-slew-count toof 10 before
removing the needleafter-the-injestion-butten-is-fully-depressed. The number on
the dose window will return to “0” as you inject.

XXi. Wlthdraw needle from skln

sl

yodt-xxii. Remove pen needle from the |nsuI|n pen by tvwstlng counterclockw:se
Never store the pen with a pen needle attached.

yodvexxiii. Discard the used Autoshieldsafety pen needle into the sharps container.

PRVEXXIV. Replace pen cap and return the insulin pen to the patient’s medication

container in the medication room.

Foat=XXV. Document in the medical-recordEHR and-include-second withess{see
Patient Care-Services-Medication-Administration Roliey).

RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

1.

PCS Policy: Medication Administration

REFERENCES:

NN~

Humalog (R) [package insert]. Indianapolis, IN: Lilly USA, LLC; 2015.

Novolog ® [package insert]. Bagsvaerd, Denmark: Novo Nordisk; 2016.

Humulin ® [package insert]. Indianapolis, IN: Lilly USA, LLC; 2015.

Novolin ® [package insert]. Bagsvaerd, Denmark: Novo Nordisk; 2016.

Humulin N ® [package insert]. Indianapolis, IN: Lilly USA, LLC; 2015.

Novolin N ® [package insert]. Bagsvaerd, Denmark: Novo Nordisk; 2016.

Lantus ® [package insert]. Bridgewater, NJ: Sanofi-aventis, LLC; 2015

Levemir ® [ package insert]. Bagsvaerd, Denmark: Novo Nordisk; 2015.

ISMP. Do not use an insulin pen for multiple patients! Hazard Alert. ISMP Medication
Safety Alert! 2012;17(1):1,4

Becton, Dickson and Company. (2017). AutoShield™ Duo Pen Needle —Instructions for

34



(C‘)) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

ISSUE DATE: NEW

SUBJECT: INSULIN; USE OF CONCENTRATED

POLICY

REVISION DATE(S):

Department Approval Date(s): 11/16
Clinical Policies and Procedures Approval Date(s): 12/16
Nurse Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 01/17
Diabetes Task Force Approval Date(s): 12/16
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval Date(s): 03/17
Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 04/17

Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):
Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A PURPOSE:

1. To address the inpatient management of insulin regimens for patients on a concentrated insulin

product on an outpatient basis.

a.

Concentrated insulin products, particularly U-500 regular insulin pose a significant

patient safety risk with regard to appropriate dose calculation, administration, and dose

adjustments.

Risk of inappropriate dosage adjustments is high due to lack of familiarity with

concentrated insulin products by most non-specialized providers and the variable insulin

needs of admitted patients.

i Many patients require significantly less insulin during admission as compared to
their usual outpatient needs for various clinical reasons.

B. DEFINITION(S):

Concentrated insulin: Any insulin dosage form manufactured at concentrations greater than 100
units/mL including but not limited to U-500 regular insulin, insulin degludec (Tresiba) U-200,

1.

C. POLICY:
1.
2.

and insulin glargine (Toujeo) U-300, and Humalog U-200.

Concentrated insulins are not permitted for use at Tri-City Medical Center.
Patients on a concentrated insulin prior to admission who require continued insulin therapy
during admission will be converted by a physician to a formulary based insulin regimen.

a.

b.

A conversion to a basal/bolus regimen using insulin glargine and insulin lispro,
respectively are recommended.

A 2026-56% reduction in total daily insulin units is recommended for the majority of
patients when converting patients from a concentrated insulin regimen to a standard
concentration basal/bolus regimen.

D. REFERENCES:
Paulus AO, Colburn JA, True MW, et al. Evaluation of total daily dose and glycemic control for
patients taking U-500 regular insulin admitted to the hospital. Endocrine Practice. 2016:22:1187-

1.

1191

Samaan KH, Dahlke M, Stover J. Addressing safety concerns about U-500 insulin in a hospital
setting. American Journal of Health Systems Pharmacy. 2011;68:63-68

Tripathy PR, Lansang MC. U-500 regular insulin use in hospitalized patients. Endocrine
Practice. 2016;21:54-58

35



‘C‘) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES-ROLICY-MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: 10/96 SUBJECT: Nutrition Education of Patients
REVISION DATE: 6/03, 1/04, 05/11 POLICY NUMBER: V.D

Department Approval: 02/17

Clinical Policies and Procedures Approval: 03/4403/17

Nurse Executive Committee Approval: 03/4403/17

Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 04/17

Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 04/11

Board of Directors Approval: 05/11

A. POLICY:

1.

2.

3.

10.

Registered Dietitian (RD) shall educate patients, family, and/or significant others, as appropriate,
regarding prescribed diet and means by which nutritional goals can be met.

RD shall determine the need for patient education based upon nutritional assessment and
assessment of patients’ knowledge of prescribed diet.

The patient's educational needs shall be assessed for language, cognitive, and emotional barriers.
Readiness to learn shall be assessed and available support networks are determined.

The patient/family/significant other shall be educated regarding diet so as to improve dietary
compliance or nutritional needs. Appropriate tools are utilized to enhance patient understanding of
education. Both verbal and written tools are utilized; copies of written materials are provided for use
at home.

Patients are educated at a time when they are ready to learn. For example, education is timed so
that it does not occur when the patient is distracted, in pain, or awaiting imminent discharge.
Questions are asked of patient to solicit assessment of patient understanding. Diet history may be
obtained. The patient is encouraged to develop a plan for implementing necessary changes in
diet/nutrition.

Documentation of any educational activity is completed in the patient's medical record.
Documentation shall include description of materials provided, assessment of patient's
understanding of education and motivation to comply with restrictions.

Follow up teaching is accomplished through the patient's stay. Phone number is given for patient to
contact RD with questions as needed after discharge.

The Registered Nurse (RN) is responsible for the initial functional assessment during the
admission process, as well as reinforcing education provided by the dietitian as needed and
upon discharge.

The RN shall also initiate the appropriate plan of care and per the Patient Care Services Policy;
Interdisciplinary Plan of Care (IPOC)-N:G.

RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

GA.

Patient Care Services Policy; Interdisciplinary Plan of Care (IPOC).

36



(C‘)) Tri-City Medical Center

Distribution: Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE:

PERCUTANEOUS TRACHEOSTOMY ASSIST

Purpose:

Percutaneous dilational tracheostomy (PDT), also referred to as bedside tracheostomy, is
the placement of a tracheostomy tube without direct surgical visualization of the trachea.
It is a procedure that can be performed in the intensive care unit at the patient's bedside
with continuous monitoring of patient's vital signs. The procedure may be performed under
local anesthesia.

Supportive Data:

A. Advantages of Percutaneous Dilational Tracheostomy:

1. Time required for performing bedside PDT is considerably shorter than that
for an open tracheostomy.

2. Eliminates complications that can occur during transport to or from the OR
such as accidental extubation or intravascular catheter decannulation.

3. Elimination of the need to use an operating room and anesthesiology team

4. A smaller operative scar

5. Less bleeding and tracheal erosion

6. Reduced likelihood of infection.

B. Indications:

1. The need for prolonged artificial airway.

2, The patient that is unable to cough effectively requiring assistance in the
removal of bronchial secretions.

3. The need for positive pressure ventilation when using a cuffed
tracheostomy\tube.

4. To prevent aspiration of gastric secretions or contents in the unconscious

(or paralyzed) patient by the use of a cuffed tracheostomy tube that will not
allow those fluids to communicate with the trachea.

A

POLICY:
The procedure should be scheduled in advance to ensure the availability of the Video
bronchoscope. The Pulmonary lead should be called to schedule: 760-802-1974.

The bedside nurse and respiratory therapists will be responsible for monitoring the patient
and providing the Physician with the necessary equipment for the bedside tracheostomy

1.

2.

procedure.

One respiratory therapist is responsible for ventilator adjustments and tube manipulations.
The physician is responsible for manipulating the bronchoscope.

PROCEDURE (NURSING):

PO~

Ensure that all the necessary supplies are available — obtain Percutaneous Tracheostomy Cart
Provide education to the patient about the procedure.

Ensure that the procedural consent is signed.

Place patient in a supine position with the head midline and the neck extended with chin pointing
toward the ceiling.

Assist physician with sterile draping and site preparation

Ensure Time Out is performed per Patient Care Services (PCS) Universal Protocol Procedure
Document Time Out in the medical record

Support and reassure the patient during the procedure.

Administer sedation as ordered by physician per PCS Sedation/Analgesia Used During
Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedures.

Assist the physician with the procedure and equipment as needed. Open sterile supplies as

directed by

physician.

v e nB,tgz?g urds’ | L0

3/13, 12/16

3n3, 117

313, 02117 8/13, 04/17

37



| Patient Care Services Procedure-Marual
Percutaneous Tracheostomy Assist

Page 2 of 3

11.

12.

Monitor and document patient’s vital signs every 5 minutes during procedure. Vital Signs include
but are not limited to:

a. Heart rate,

b. Respiratory rate,
c. Blood pressure,
d. Pulse oximetry,

e. End-tidal CO; and Color.
Assist with post procedural tube securement and dressing.

C. PROCEDURE (RESPIRATORY):

PONS

©~N oo

©

10.
1.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.

18.
19.
20.

Make sure protective equipment is being worn, such as gown, gloves, mask and eye protection.
Assist with monitoring vital signs as noted above.

Monitor end-tidal CO, measurements (if applicable)

Place patient on 100% FiO; in preparation for the procedure and increase peak pressure limit to
allow adequate V1 delivery during procedure.

Suction patient (both orally and down endotracheal (ET) tube) if necessary.

Attach syringe to pilot balloon for cuff inflation and deflation.

Have videoscope/bronchoscope ready to insert down ET tube and follow physician instructions.
Deflate the cuff upon physician request and slowly withdraw the ET tube to a level just above the
vocal cords—physician will guide the RCP during the process.

The RCP may need to adjust the V; and rate on the ventilator to compensate for the air leak
created when the ET tube cuff is deflated. Another option is the RCP may gently re-inflate cuff
only until V; is achieved.

Observe insertion of needle, dilators and tracheostomy tube by the physician.

Inflate cuff on tracheostomy tube and attach ventilator tubing.

Check end-tidal CO,.

Assess breath sounds.

Remove the scope.

Remove ET tube after proper placement is confirmed.

Secure tracheostomy tube.

Return ventilator to the ordered settings.

Tape obturator at the head of bed to assist in emergent replacement in case of decannulation.
Keep appropriate sized back up tracheostomy at bedS|de

Clean scope appropriately per Pulms

GER-1 PCS High Level Disinfection Procedure

D. RELATIVE CONTRAINDICATIONS TO PERCUTANEOUS TRACHEOSTOMY:

w#wwd

LN

c
1

2.
3.
4.
5
6

Children younger than 12 years of age

Emergency Airway Access

Hemodynamic instability

Anatomic abnormality of the trachea

Palpable blood vessel over the tracheostomy site

a. For example malposition of the brachiocephalic or innominate artery
FiO, > 60%

PEEP >15 cmH,0

Coagulopathies

Limited ability to extend the cervical spine

OMPLICATIONS THAT CAN OCCUR WITH PERCUTANEOUS TRACHEQOSTOMY:

Bleeding

Infection

Accidental Extubation
Para-tracheal Insertion
Esophageal perforation
Subcutaneous emphysema

38



| Patient Care Services Procedure-Manual
Percutaneous Tracheostomy Assist

Page 3 0of 3

7. Pneumothorax

8. Tracheal stenosis.

9. Airway obstruction as evidenced by:
a. Restlessness
b. Tachycardia
c. Tachypnea, wheezing, stridor
d. Decreased SpO; levels, cyanosis, pallor

10. injury to thyroid or laryngeal nerve.

F. DOCUMENTATION:
1. Document in the medical record.
2. Respiratory to chart new tracheostomy insertion under Artificial Airway

G. RELATED DOCUMENTS:
1. PCS Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedures
PCS Universal Protoco! Procedure

2 anan QAANINCL N alf-u=,

2.
3.

H. REFRENCES:
1. Cianchi G, Bonizzoli M, Batacchi S, Cammelli R, Biondi S, Spina R, Peris A. A Comparison
between single step and balloon dilatational tracheostomy in intensive care unit; a single centre,
randomized controlled study. Br J Anaesth. 2010 Jun: 104 (6): 728-732. Epub 2010 April 2010.
2. Marchese S,Corrado A, Scala R, Corrao S, Ambrosino N; Intensive Care Study Group, Italian
Association of Hospital Pulmonologists (AIPO) Tracheostomy in patients with long-term
mechanical ventilation: a survey.Respir Med. 2010 May; 104 (5) 749-753. Epub 2010 Feb 1.



o
@9 Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

STANDARDIZED-PROCEDURES-MANUALPATIENT CARE SERVICES

STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE: RAPID RESPONSE

POLICY:

A.

Function: A systematic method for the Rapid Response Team (RRT) to collaborate with the

attending physician in the assessment, diagnosis, evaluation, and management or stabilization

of the adult patient exhibiting signs and symptoms of impending respiratory and/or

cardiovascular deterioration.

Circumstances:

1. Setting: Adult patients (age 14 years and older) admitted to or being treated at Tri-City
Medical Center.

2. Supervision: None Required

The Rapid-ResponseTeamRRT or designated Intensive Care Unit (ICU) Registered Nurse

(RN) is available for consultation 24 hours per day, seven days per week and may be activated

for all situations where rapid patient evaluation is necessary.

1. The Rapid-Response—~Feam RRT may be initiated in any location of the hospital.

All overhead pages requesting the Rapid-Respense-TeamRRT shall initiate the following

responders:

1. Team Leader: An Intensive-Gare-Unit{ICU}-Registered-Nurse-(RN)

2. Respiratory Care Practitioner (RCP)

2:3. Administrative Supervisor (AS)

34. Phiebotomist

4.5. Electrocardiogram (EKG) Technician

The Rapid-Respense-FeamRRT shall assess the patient and initiate life-saving interventions per

Code Blue and Emergency Care Standardized Procedure and Rapid Response Standardized
Procedure.

The attending physician shall be notified of change in the patient’s condition and interventions
initiated by the RRT.

In the event of a delay in the attending physician response, where the patient’s condition
warrants immediate physician consultation, the RRT shall contact the Chair of Critical Care
Committee, Medical Director of ICU, or designee for orders.

The Assistant Nurse Manager (ANM)/designee shall provide support to the family/caregiver
using social services or chaplain services and by providing regular updates and information.

&

3oz
o Dire

_Comr - Commf

P P E AT g
o S RS

.:Ia;s* o

~1/08, 6/08

3/10, 8/10,
12/13, 07/16

3/10, 12/11; 8/10, 4/12;

8/10, 5/12; 8/10, 11/12,

84,1016 | 314 0317 | or4, 0417 | 11114, 04117

1/14, 09/16 1/14, 09/16

6/08, 8/10,
12/12, 1/15

40



| Stendardized-Procadure-ManualPatient Care Services
Standardized Procedure: Rapid Response

Page 2 of 7

B-A. ResponS|b|I|t|es of the Rap%d—Respense—'FeamRRT are as follows
The ICU RRT Team Leader:

1

&:B. Hypotension:
1.

oo o

«

Conducts physical assessment of patient

Places patient on an electrocardiogram (ECG) monitor

Applies a pulse oximeter

Ensures patent Intravenous (V) access

Reassesses vital signs every 5 to 15 minutes or as condition dictates

i. If the Rapid-Respense-FeamRRT Leader determines a full team response
is warranted, a Code Blue announcement shall be initiated.

Collaborates with RCP if patient condition warrants.

Implements initial lifesaving interventions per Standardized Procedure: Code

Blue and Emergency Care if situation warrants.

Communicates with patient’s attending physician/designee and reports

assessment, initial interventions with patient responses, and discusses plan of

care for any significant intervention using the Situation, Backround,

Assessment, and Recommendation (SBAR) technique.

If hypotension is due to fluid volume deficit:

a.

b.

Administer Normal Saline 1V bolus of 500 mL over 30 minutes. If responsive
(MAP or SBP increase greater than 10%) but MAP remains less than 65 mm Hg
may repeat one time.

Contact physician for further IV fluid orders.

If volume loss is due to acute bleeding draw blood for immediate (STAT) CBC,
prothrombin time and partial thromboplastin time (PT/PTT), type and eressscreen,
and contact physician to order blood products and IV fluids.

EC. Sepsis:

1.

Sepsis shall be considered in all patients with known or suspected infection who have 2
or more of the following Systemic Inflammatory Response Syndrome (SIRS) criteria:

a.
b.

Heart rate greater than 90 beats per minute
Temperature less than 36°Celcius (C) (96.8°Farenheit [F]) or greater than 38°C
(100.4°F)

41



| Standardized Precedure-ManualPatient Care Services
Standardized Procedure: Rapid Response

Page 3 of 7

C. Respiratory rate greater than 20 breaths per minute or PaCO, less than 32
mmHg

d. White blood count (WBC) greater than 12,000/mm? or less than 4,000/mm?3

Severe sepsis: patients that meet sepsis criteria complicated by acute organ

dysfunction.

Septic shock: patients that meet the above severe sepsis criteria complicated by

hypotension that is refractory to fluid bolus and requires vasopressors.

Treatment of severe sepsis:

a. Administer Normal Saline 500 mL IV bolus. May repeat times one to maintain
MAP greater than 65mmHg, Central Venous Pressure (CVP) of 8-12 mmHg,
and urine output greater than 0.5 mL/kg/hr

b. Draw blood for serum lactate level, Comprehensive Metabolic Panel (CHEM-
12), and CBC (complete blood count) with manual differential

c. Obtain arterial blood gas (ABG)

d. Obtain blood, sputum and urine cultures

e. Contact physician for orders regarding:

i Appropriate patient placement (transfer to ICU)

i. Removal of potential infection source (i.e. invasive lines or abscess)
ii. Broad spectrum antibiotics

iv. Blood glucose control

&:D. Acute Change in Mental Status:

1.

Check blood glucose. If blood glucose is less than 70 mg/dL, follow the PCS
Standardized Procedure: Hypoglycemia Management in the Adult Patient-{Net

If acute cerebrovascular accident (CVA) is suspected due to new onset of one-sided

motor weakness, facial droop, slurred speech and/or aphasia, perform NIH Stroke Scale

assessment.

a. If new deficits are confirmed, dial 66 to initiate an “In-House Stroke Code” and
page the on-call aANeurologist.

If hypoxia is suspected, apply oxygen via nasal cannula, simple mask, or non-rebreather

mask as needed to maintain oxygen saturation greater than 92%. Draw ABG.

If the patient is receiving sedation or analgesia:

a. Stop Patient Care Analgesia (PCA) and sequester equipment if applicable.

b. Administer naloxone (Narcan) 0.4 mg IV push for opiate reversal. If necessary,
repeat every 2—-3 minutes to a maximum dose of 2 mg.
c. Consider flumazenil (Romazicon) 0.25 mg 1V push for acute benzodiazepine

reversal. If necessary, may repeat every 1 minute to a maximum dose of 1mg.
Further doses may be required with a Physician Order.
d. If a reversal agent has been used the patient shall be monitored for 90 minutes.
If the patient is agitated or delirious and may be going through alcohol withdrawal,
administer lorazepam (Ativan) 2 mg IV push times one dose.
If the patient is agitated or delirious with no history of alcohol abuse and none of the
above treatments apply (i.e. patient is not hypoxic or hypoglycemic), administer Haldol 2
mg IM or IV push times one dose (see PCS SP: Haloperidol IV Administration).

H-E. Chest Pain/In-House STEMI Activation:

1.
2.

Assess pain quantity, quallty location, radlatlon time of onset and pre0|p|tat|ng factors.

Order STAT ECG by-dialing-760-802-8484-(04:00-20:30)-0r-760-80 4-{20:30-0400

and review for ischemic changes.

a. If ECG is positive for ***Acute Myocardial Infarction (M|)***, dial 66 to initiate an
“In-House Code STEMI” (see Patient Care Services Code STEMI policy)

Apply oxygen at 4 L/min via nasal cannula.

Administer aspirin 162 mg PO if patient has not already taken it and has no

contraindications (i.e. Aspirin allergy or active bleeding).

42



| Standardized-Procedure-ManualPatient Care Services
Standardized Procedure; Rapid Response

Page 4 of 7

LF.

J4-G.

K=H.

5. Administer nitroglycerin 0.4 mg sublingual every 5 minutes as needed (PRN) for chest
pain up to 3 doses. Hold if SBP is less than 90 mmHg.
a. If nitroglycerin is ineffective in relieving chest pain, administer morphine 2 mg IV

push times one.

6. Obtain STAT portable Chest X-Ray (CXR).

7. Draw blood for-sardiac-enzymes CK, Mb Fraction, Cardiac Troponin (Troponin ),
Basic Metabolic Panel (CHEM 7), and PT/PTT.

Respiratory Distress:

1. Apply oxygen via nasal cannula, simple mask, or non-rebreather mask as needed to
maintain oxygen saturation greater than 92%.

2. Oral or nasotracheal (NT) suction if the patient is unable to clear secretions.

3. If the respiratory rate is less than 8 breaths per minute, please refer to Acute Change in

Mental Status section.

4. Obtain physician order for bi-level (biphasic) positive airway pressure (BIPAP) if the
respiratory rate is greater than 25 breaths per minute and as patient condition
warrants.

5. Administer nebulized medications Albuterol-2.5-mg-and-Atrovent 0-5-mg-via-nebulizer
for wheezing: times-1-dese
a. Albuterol 2.5 mg and Ipratropium 0.5 mg (DuoNeb inhalation solution)

times 1 dose, or

Atbuterol2.5-mg-times-1-dose-

6. Administer furosemide (Lasix) 40 mg IV push times 1 and draw blood for CHEM 7 and
BNP if respiratory distress occurs with signs and symptoms of fluid overload (e.g. intake
greater than output, bibasilar crackles, jugular venous distension, edema).

7 Draw ABG.

8. Order a STAT portable CXR-,

9. Order STAT ECG.

Hypertensive Crisis:

1. Assess patient for end organ dysfunction due to hypertensive emergency: change in
mental status, respiratory distress, visual disturbances, or acute renal failure.

a. If present, start nicardipine (Cardene) 5Smg/hr to keep diastolic blood pressure
(DBP) 100-110 mmHg. Avoid in patients with known or suspected EF <less than
25%. Lower starting doses of 2.6mg/hr can be considered in patients with renal
failure or age =-greater than or equal to 65.

b. Decreasing blood pressure too rapidly could result in cerebral hypoperfusion or
coronary insufficiency. May increase by 2.5-5 mg/hour every 5 to 15 minutes up
to 15mg/hr. The initial goals of treatment should be to decrease the MAP by 20-
25% and reduce the DBP to 100-110 mmHg. Consider reduction to 3mg/hour
after response is achieved.

2. If no signs and symptoms of end organ dysfunction are present: (hypertensive urgency):
administer Hydralazine 10 mg IV. May repeat in 20 minutes if MAP has not decreased
by 20-25% or if DBP is greater than 110 mmHg (contraindicated in acute aortic
dissection).

a. If the patient has a history of coronary artery disease (CAD) or a heart rate
greater than 80 beats per minute, administer Labetalol (Trandate) 20 mg V.
May repeat in 5 minutes if MAP has not decreased by 20-25% or if DBP is
greater than 110 mmHg.

3. If IV access cannot be obtained, administer Clonidine (Catapres) 0.2 mg PO one time.
Bradycardia:
1. If the patient is having signs and symptoms of poor perfusion related to bradycardia (i.e.
change in mental status, chest pain, hypotension or other signs of shock):
a. Prepare for transcutaneous pacing. Pace without delay for second degree type 2

or third degree block.
i. Apply pacing pads in the anterior/posterior position.

43



| Standardized-Rrocedure-ManualPatient Care Services
Standardized Procedure: Rapid Response

Page 5§ of 7

d.
e.

f.

El.  Tachycardia:

ii. Set initial external pacemaker settings to a rate of 80 and mA of 80.

iii. Adjust mA as needed to maintain capture.

Consider Atropine 0.5 mg IV while awaiting pacer. May repeat every 5 minutes
up to 3 mg.

Consider Dopamine 5 mcg/kg/min continuous |V infusion while awaiting pacer or
if pacing is ineffective. May titrate in 4-42mcg/kg/min inerements-every in 10
minutes as needed to achieve goal HR.

Obtain a STAT 12-lead ECG.

Draw blood for CHEM 7, CK Mb Fraction, and Troponin l-and-cardiac
enzymes. Draw blood for drug levels (such as digoxin) if applicable.

Check blood glucose and if less than 70 mg/dL treat per Standardized
Procedure: Hypoglycemia Management.

1. Order STAT ECG.
2. Draw blood for CHEM 7, CK Mb Fraction and Troponin | cardiac-enzymes-and ABG
after treating the patient.

3. Stable:

a.

Regular, Narrow QRS Complex:
i Attempt vagal maneuvers by having patient bear down or cough.
ii. Administer Adenosine (Adenocard) 6 mg IV push over 1-3 seconds. If
tachycardia persists, repeat in 1-2 minutes with 12 mg IV push.
1) Reduce dose by 50% (Adnenocard 3mg followed by
Adenocard 6mg should tachycardia persist) for the following:
1. Administering through a central line
12, Patient has a history of heart transplant
ii-ili.  Administer normal saline 20 mL IV push after each dose of
adenosine.
lrregular Narrow QRS Complex:
i. Administer diltiazem (Cardizem) 10 mg IV push tlmes 1 dose; may
repeat tlmes 1 dose |f0

tachycardia

perSISts after 15 mlnutes 0—35mg!kg—l—\l—push—e¥er—2—m+mates-(AG|=S

. Consider calling physician for a sta-a-Diltiazem continuous |V infusion
after bolus doses.at18 -mghour.
iii. Do not use diltiazem in patients receiving beta blockers or

known/suspected EF <less than 25% -Rate-may-be-increasedin2.5-

Wide QRS Complex:

i. Administer amiodarone 150 mg diluted in 100mi of D5W IV over 10
minutes. Infuse through a 0.22 micron filter.

ii. Consider calling physician for amiodarone infusion after initial bolus
dose.

4, Unstable:

a.

Heart rate is greater than 150 beats per minute and serious signs and symptoms

such as chest pain, shortness of breath, decreased level of consciousness, or

hypotensmn are present and believed to be related to rapid rate.

i. Prepare for immediate synchronized cardioversion.

ii. Consider sedation if the patient is conscious and a physician order can be
obtained, but do not delay cardioversion.

iii. Ensure the defibrillator pads and monitor leads are attached to the patient
and the defibrillator is in synchronization mode.

44



| Standardized-Procedure-ManualPatient Care Services
Standardized Procedure: Rapid Response

Page 6 of 7
iv. Cardiovert with 50 joules and check the patient’s rhythm.

1) If necessary, repeat cardioversion at 75, 100, 120, 150 and 200
joules. Be sure to reset the defibrillator to synchronization mode
with each increase in Jjoules.

M-J. Seizures:

1. Protect patient from injury. Do not place anything in the patient's mouth.

2. Administer Lorazepam (Ativan) 4 mg (if patient weighs less than 40kg, give 0.1 mg/kg)
slow |V push over 2 minutes. May repeat one time in 40-455-10 minutes if seizures
continue. Doses not to exceed 8 mg total.

3. Draw blood for CHEM 7, Calcium, capillary blood glucose and any applicable drug levels
(i.e. Dilantin).

4. Obtain physician order for EEG.

N:=K. Anaphylaxis:

1. Anaphylaxis is a severe allergic reaction that may occur after exposure to certain foods,
drugs, or contrast dye in susceptible patients. Signs and symptoms may include
hypotension, rash, swelling of the lips, face, neck or throat, wheezing, and difficulty
breathing.

2. If patient is experiencing stridor and is in danger of airway occlusion call Code Blue for
emergent intubation.

3. Severe reaction:

a. Administer epinephrine (+:4:600=%-mg/mk}-0.5 mg (using 1mg/ml solution)
intramuscularly-er-subsutanesusly. May be repeated every-in 5-15 minutes in the
absence of clinical improvement fer-up-to-two-desestimes one dose

b. If patient weighs less than 50 kg, administer epinephrine
0.01 mg/kg mtramuscularly-er—subeutaneeusly (using 1mglml solution). May be
repeated in 5-15 minutes in the absence of clinical improvement times one
dose.

c. Obtain physician order to Aadminister normal saline IV at a rate of 999ml/hr
for up to 2 liters to restore adequate blood pressure.

d. Provide adjunctive therapies as listed below once patient is stable to prevent
relapse of the reaction.

4. Mild reaction:

a. Administer normal saline 500 mL IV fluid bolus if the patient is hypotensive; may
repeat one time.

b. Administer Albuterol 2.5 mg via nebulizer if the patient is wheezing

c. Famotidine (Pepcid) 20 mg IV once; obtain physician orders for additional
dosingQ42H.

d. Administer diphenhydramine (Benadryl) 25 mg IV push once.

e. Administer hydrocortisone (Solu-CORTEF) 200 mg IV push if severe prolonged
reaction is expected.

POST EVENT PROCEDURE:

A. The Rap&d—Respense—'FeamRRT shall eentinually-re-evaluate the patient’s condition after

providing interventions.
A phone call shall be placed to the primary-attending physician to provide an update on patient
status or for-any sigrifieant-interventions performed.

attendingerders-must-be-ebtained-frem-the physician.

B
C. Transfer patient to higher level of care if deemed appropriate by the RRT or
D

The Rapid-RespenseFeamRRT shall remain with the patient until patient is stabilized on the
unit or transferred to a higher level of care.

1.

Rapid-ResponseTeamRRT leader shall provide hand-off communication to the receiving
nurse.

45



| Standardized Procedure-ManualPatient Care Services
Standardized Procedure: Rapid Response
Page 7 of 7

I Iv.

VI

VII.

VIIL.

E.

2. In the event the patient is transferred to a higher level of care, the i
FeamRRT leader shall provide the staff nurses with an update on patient's status after
transfer.
If patient is maintained on the unit, the Rapid-RespenseRRT Team RN shall place a follow-up
call or visit the staff nurse 1 to 4 hours after the event for an update on the status of the patient.

DOCUMENTATION-AND-FORMS:

A.

moow»

The Rapid-Respense-FeamRRT Leader shall document all events in the medical record to

include the following:

1. Reason for call

2. Interventions performed, medications administered, and labs or diagnostic tests ordered
per standardized procedure

3. Follow-up report

All new physician orders shall be placed in the electronic health recorddecumented-enthe

appropriatephysisian-ordershast.

REQUIREMENTS FOR CLINICIANS INITIATING STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

Current California RN license.

Minimum of 2 years critical care experience

Education: Successful completion of ACLS course (with current course completion card).

Initial Evaluation: Successful completion of Rapid Response Orientation.

Ongoing Evaluation: Completion of Annual ICU Skills Lab and RRT Standardized Procedure
Computer-Based Learning module.

DEVELOPMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

A

B.

Method: This Standardized Procedure was developed through collaboration with Nursing,
Medicine, and Administration.
Review: Every two (2) years.

CLINICIANS AUTHORIZED TO PERFORM THIS STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

A

All Registered Nurses who have successfully completed requirements as outlined above are
authorized to direct and perform RAPID RESPONSE Standardized Procedure.

RELATED DOCUMENTS:

A
B.
C.
G:D.

PCS SP: Code Blue and Emergency Care

PCS SP: Haloperidol IV Administration

PCS SP: Hypoglycemia Management in the Adult Patient
PCS: Rapid Response Team and Condition Help (H)

46



(&9 Trl-Clty Medical Center Distribution: Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE: SEDATION/ANALGESIA USED DURING THERAPEUTIC OR DIAGNOSTIC
PROCEDURES
Purpose: To establish guidance for the safe administration of sedatives used specifically for a

level of sedation referred to as moderate sedation/analgesia (previously referred to as
“conscious sedation”) and deep sedation, delineate required components of care
delivery and facilitate comparability of care organization-wide in sedation/analgesia.
This procedure does not apply to therapeutic/diagnostic procedures when
anesthesiologist is present or NICU setting.

Equipment: The following equipment/supplies are readily available and functional during sedation
and recovery periods:
1. Emergency cart with cardiac monitor/defibrillator and airway management

equipment readily available

Cardiac Monitor

Capnography Monitor

Pulse oximeter with alarm

Blood Pressure Monitor

Suction Equipment

Positive-pressure oxygen delivery system available

Reversal medications -Naloxone (Narcan) and Flumazenil (Romazicon) - readily

available

PN~ WN

A DEFINITION(S):

§T1. Richmond Agitation-Sedation Scale (RASS):

BRI : Teyit A AL < i - oh
-2 nght Sedatlon Bneﬂy, less than 10 seconds, awakemng wnth eye contact
to v0|ce

a4 “Deep Sedatlon " No response to voice, but anto movement to'physmal o
_stimulation

~9/06; 10/08; »
; 10/08; os/12; 02/13,
06/11; 02112; G

1115

08/12, 0516 03/17 03/17 10/12, 04117 10/12 10/12

47



Patient Care Services Manual
Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedures Procedure

Page 2 of 17

8-7.

commands. Although cognitive function and coordination may be impaired, ventilatory and
cardiovascular functions are unaffected. This level of sedation is associated with the RASS
score of - 2Ramsey-Sedation-ScaleLevel-2.

Moderate Sedation/Analgesia (Previously referred to as “Conscious Sedation”): A drug-induced
depression of consciousness during which patients respond purposefully to verbal commands,
either alone or accompanied by light tactile stimulation. (Note: Reflex withdrawal from painful
stimulus is not considered a purposeful response.) No interventions are required to maintain a
patent airway, spontaneous ventilation is adequate, and cardiovascular function is usually
maintained. Moderate sedation/analgesia may only be administered during therapeutic,
diagnostic or surgical procedures. This level of sedation is associated with the RASS score
of -3 ; .

i-a.  Medications used for Moderate Sedation should be those easily titrated for this
purpose. Rapid onset anesthetics (e.g. propofol, etomidate, ketamine, and
thiopental) are not appropriate for moderate sedation and must not be used for
this purpose.

Deep Sedation/Analgesia: A drug-induced depression of consciousness during which patients

cannot be easily aroused but respond purposefully following repeated or painful stimulation.

Patients may require assistance in maintaining a patent airway and spontaneous ventilation

may be inadequate. Cardiovascular function is usually maintained. This level of sedation is

associated with the RASS score of - 4Ramsey-ScaleLevel 6.
. . . :
@ .I.'I""'“H'“ Sta.”.i' 'S I%equuemel_lts

.'.. lp: ysicar hll:l :pl pl enleln_llmg”the ﬁ'le. seldbne

b-a. A Registered Nurse (RN) may not administer medications for deep sedation (propofol,
ketamine, or etomidate) or provide monitoring for deep sedation.

b. Medication administration and-menitering-for deep sedation may only be performed by a
physician/PAHR who has been privileged in deep sedation.

§-c. Monitoring for deep sedation may be performed by a physician/AHP.

Anesthesia: Consists of general anesthesia and spinal or major regional anesthesia. It does not

include local anesthesia.

a. General anesthesia is a drug-induced loss of consciousness during which patients are
not arousable, even by painful stimulation. The ability to independently maintain
ventilatory function is often impaired. Patients often require assistance in maintaining a
patent airway, and positive pressure ventilation may be required because of depressed
spontaneous ventilation or drug-induced depression of neuromuscular function.
Cardiovascular function may be impaired.

Rescue: Rescue of a patient from a deeper level of sedation than intended is an intervention by

a practitioner proficient in airway management and advanced life support. The qualified

practitioner corrects adverse physiological consequences of the deeper-than-intended level of

sedation (such as hypoventilation, hypoxia, and hypotension) and returns the patient to the
originally intended level of sedation. It is not appropriate to continue the procedure at an
unintended level of sedation.

Allied Health Professional (AHP)Lisensed-independent-Practitioner{LIP): An individual

credentialed/privileged to provide specified patient care, treatment and services.

End tidal CO2 (EtCO.): The measuring of End tidal CO2 (EtCO,) via the Capnography machine

is not a diagnostic measurement. Rather, EtCO, measurements are to give a non-invasive

trending measurement. Therefore, it is important to establish a patient's baseline EtCO, before
sedation is given.

Respiratory depression: can be defined as:

a. EtCO; values 10mmHg higher or lower than the patient’s baseline with an absolute
maximum of 50mmHg
b. 10% change in EtCO, values above or below a patient’s baseline

48



Patient Care Services Manual
Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedures Procedure

Page 3of 17

c. Apnea that last for 15 seconds or longer

B. POLICY:

1. Tri-City Medical Center (TCMC) provides for the safe administration of sedatives, minimize
clinical risks to patients, and assure comparability of care throughout the organization.

2. This policy is intended to discuss the care of patients receiving a specific level of sedation/
analgesia under the care of non-anesthesiologists privileged to administer sedation/analgesia. It
has been designated to be applicable to procedures performed in a variety of settings and by
various disciplines. These settings may be inpatient or outpatient and include but are not limited
to:

a. Moderate Sedation: Cardiac Catheterization Lab, Critical Care, Telemetry,
Diagnostic Imaging, Emergency Department, Operating Room/ Endoscopy/
Bronchoscopy, Post Anesthesia Care Unit, Interventional Radiology.

b. Deep Sedation: Emergency Department

a—Gardiae-Cath-Lak

S alarmatny

er—Errergernsy-Pepariraant

F———Operating-Reom/Endoscopy/Bronchescopy

3. This policy excludes:

a. Patients who are NOT undergoing therapeutic or diagnostic procedures (i.e.,
preoperative or postoperative sedation, pain management, sedation for insomnia, or
seizure management)

b. Emergent procedures

c. Patients undergoing major regional anesthesia or general anesthesia.

d. Situations where it is anticipated that the required sedation analgesia will eliminate
purposeful response to verbal commands or tactile stimulation accompanied by partial or
complete loss of protective reflexes; such patients require a greater level of care than
covered in this policy.

g-f Minimal Sedation/Anxiolytic - note: if patient slips into the moderate sedation level, this
sedation/analgesia procedure must be implemented.

kh-g.  Drug or alcohol withdrawal or prophylaxis.

h The use of any level of sedation/analgesia in any area of the hospital where an
anesthesiologist is present.

i Single doses of sedatives and narcotics (PO, IM, or IV) given in usual and
customary doses for routine care of patients during procedures such as dressing
changes, etc. do not require the provider to follow the sedation policy as long as
the RASS score remains at a—1 or below.

- The decision to use a single dose of medication for anxiolysis or pain control or to
use the sedation policy should be based on the patient’s history and planned
procedure.

4. Patient Consent:

a. Pre-procedural education, treatments, and services are provided according to the plan of
care

b. Physician/AHPLIRs shall be responsible for discussing alternatives and risks prior to
administration of medication as in any other procedure.

C. Procedural/Informed consents are required to be signed by all patients before any
procedures.

i. Adolescent patients shall participate in the consent process as appropriate.

5, The Registered Nurse (RN) will monitor the patient for the presence of pain. Any patient

49



Patient Care Services Manual
Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedures Procedure

Page 4 of 17

undergoing a procedure who expresses concern regarding unresolved pain management has

the right to request pain relief. Any patient request for temporary cessation or termination of the

procedure will be honored as expeditiously as possible.

Medical Staff Credentialing Requirements:

a. In order to prescribe and administer moderate or deep sedation/analgesia a
physician/AHPLHR must have requisite privilege (physician/AHPLIR privileges available
on TCMC Intranet). See Medical Staff Policy: Criteria for Granting Moderate and
Deep Sedation/Anesthesia Privileges to Non-Anesthesiologists-Credentialing

gridelines.
RNLicensed-Staff Training Requirements:

a. Moderate sedation self-study and test.
b. Demonstrate competency in basic dysrhythmia recognition
c. BLS, training including airway management, recognition of cardiovascular and

respiratory side effects of sedatives and variability of patient responses with re-
certification every 2 years is required.

d. ACLS, PALS, ENPC, NRP staff member is readily available as appropriate.

i. Healthcare providers shall use child CPR guidelines for children from 1 year of
age to puberty.

1) Signs of puberty include breast development on the female and
underarm, chest, and facial hair on the male. Once a child reaches
puberty, healthcare providers shall use adult CPR guidelines for
resuscitation.

Administering medications:

a. Medication administration and-menitering-for deep sedation may only be performed by a
physician/HPAHP who has been privileged in deep sedation.

b. The physician/LIRAHP is present prior to administering any moderate
sedation/analgesia medication.

c. Intravenous (1V) sedation analgesia drugs should be given in small incremental doses
that are titrated to the desired endpoints of analgesia and sedation. Sufficient time must
elapse between doses to allow the effect of each dose to be assessed before
subsequent drug administration. When drugs are administered by non-IV routes (oral,
rectal, intramuscular (IM), intranasal), allowance should be made for the time required
for drug absorption before supplementation is considered.

d. All medications commonly used in moderate sedation, regardless of their safety profile,
produce general anesthesia and may cause cardio respiratory arrest.

e. See resource on TCMC Intranet for the list of medications commonly used for moderate
sedation/analgesia, reversal agents, and typical dosages for all ages.

f. The RN who is directly responsible to administer medications, monitor and observe the

patient’s response to medications shall be with the patient at all times and may not
engage in tasks that would compromise continuous monitoring during the procedure.
d. Medications used for Moderate Sedation should be those easily titrated for this
purpose. Rapid onset anesthetics (e.g. propofol, etomidate, ketamine, and
thiopental) are not appropriate for moderate sedation and must not be used for
this purpose.
£h. A Registered Nurse (RN) may not administer medications for deep sedation
(propofol, ketamine, or etomidate) or provide monitoring for deep sedation.
Required Staff, Equipment and Supplies
a. Sufficient numbers of qualified staff (in addition to the person performing the procedure)
are present to evaluate the patient, assist with the procedure, provide sedation and/or
anesthesia, monitor, and recover the patient.
b. Minimum Staffing Requirements
i. Moderate Sedation
1) Physician/LHRAHP to perform procedure
2) RN to monitor patient
ii. Deep Sedation
1) Physician/HIRAHP to perform the procedure

50



Patient Care Services Manual

Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedures Procedure

Page 5 of 17

2) Physician/iRAHP to monitor the patient
3) RN to assnst physman/l:&llAHP

10.C. PROCEDURE;: PRE-SEDATION:
1. Pre-procedure RN:

Reviews Tthe anticipated needs of the patient are assessed to plan for the appropriate
level of post procedure care.

Ensures {Hsrequired-thatin-addition-te-initial- a pre-anesthesia/sedation assessment is
performed by the physman/H-FlAHP and documented in the health record—eempletes

Ensures A the physician/HRAHP documents patient’s unchanged condition from last
History &Physical or is-te-performs a pertinent pre-anesthesia/sedation assessment, to
include, but not limited to:
i. Cardiac, respiratory and/or other major system abnormalities
. Current medications and drug allergies and/or adverse experience
sedation/analgesia and anesthesia.
ii. Airway Assessment: Patient's ability to hyperextend neck, maintain airway and
open mouth without difficulty and if teeth are intact.
iv. Time and nature of last oral intake. Recommended guidelines
1) Patients shouldmust be NPO prior to procedure time for:
a) Six (6) hours after clear liquids
b) Eight (8) hours after solids

2) Oral medications may be taken with small amounts of clear liquids.
3) Patients under 10 years of age must be NPO for a period of time as
indicated below:
a) Infants 0 —1 year of age:
i) No solids the day of procedure
ii) Formula or breast milk until four (4) hours before
procedure

iii) Clear liquids until 2 hours prior to procedure
iv) NPO thereafter until the procedure.
b) Ages 1 to 2 years:
i) No solids the day of procedure
i) Full liquids until six (6) hours prior to procedure
iii) Clear liquids until three (3) hours prior to procedure
iv) NPO thereafter until the procedure
c) Ages 3 to 10 years:

i) No solids the day of procedure
ii) Clear liquids until four (4) hours prior to procedure
i) NPO thereafter until the procedure
V. American Society of Anesthesiologists (ASA) Physical Status Classification
System Providers-Class-Determination
ASAPS Examples, including but not
Classification Definition limited to:

51



Patient Care Services Manual

Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedures Procedure

Page 6 of 17

ASAClass |

A normal healthy patient

o it _

Healthy, non-smoking, no or
minimal alcohol use

ASAClass ||

A patient with a mild
systemic disease.

Mild diseases only without
substantive functional
limitations. Examples include
(but not limited to): current
smoker, social alcohol drinker,
pregnancy, obesity (30 < BMI <
40), well-controlled DM/HTN,
mild lung disease

abuse-

ASAClass ll]

A patient with severe
systemic disease-thatimits
_astmty b.lutl.'s '.'st

Substantive functional
limitations; One or more
moderate to severe diseases.
Examples include (but not
limited to): poorly controlled
DM or HTN, COPD, morbid
obesity (BMI 240), active
hepatitis, alcohol dependence
or abuse, implanted
pacemaker, moderate
reduction of ejection fraction,
ESRD undergoing regularly
scheduled dialysis, premature
infant PCA < 60 weeks, history
(>3 months) of MI, CVA, TIA, or
CADIstents. Gardievascularor

pulmonary-disease-thatlimits
astil. Hy ; Sever sl.dlarbete'sl 'l."t:'
of poorly-contrelled-hypertension-

ASAClass IV

A patient with severe
systemic disease that is a
constant threat to life.

Examples include (but not
limited to): recent (< 3
months) MI, CVA, TIA, or
CAD/stents, ongoing cardiac
ischemia or severe valve
dysfunction, severe reduction
of ejection fraction, sepsis,
DIC, ARD or ESRD not
undergoing regularly
scheduled dialysis
dystunshien:

ASAClass V

A moribund patient who is
not expected to survive 24
heurs-with-orwithout the
operation.

Examples include (but not
limited to): ruptured
abdominal/thoracic aneurysm,
massive trauma, intracranial

52



Patient Care Services Manual
Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedures Procedure

Page 7 of 17
bleed with mass effect,
ischemic bowel in the face of
significant cardiac pathology
or multiple organ/system
dysfunction
Surgersisdopcasadast
Gerzbraliraumarrasieed
aneurysm;orlarge-pulmonary
errbelus:
ASAClass VI Patient declared brain dead
whose organs are being
removed for donor
purposes.
d. Verify physician/LiRAHP orders for sedation.
e. Ensure IV access in place (as ordered by physician/LIRAHP):
i. Appropriate equipment to administer intravenous fluids and drugs including blood
and blood components is available.
f. Review/initiate individualized plan of care.
| +-2. Immediate Pre-Procedure, RN monitoring or assisting LHRAHP shalll:
a. Check consent

b. Verify procedure with patient
c. Obtain baseline vital Signs: BP, heart rate, respiratory rate, EtCO,, LOC, 02 saturation,
Pain score and document on the Sedation Flowsheet or electronic medical record.
i For pediatric patients, include height and weight. Calculate correct dosage of
reversal agent for potential administration prior to procedure.

d. Assess Level of Consciousness: Level of alertness and orientation to
person/time/place/event (age appropriate).

e. Ensure a “time out" is completed before starting the procedure as described in the
Patient Care Services Universal Protocol.

f. The patient is re-evaluated before moderate or deep sedation.

| €D. INTRA-PROCEDURE FOR PLANNED MODERATE SEDATION:
1. Measure/assess on an ongoing basis and document every 5 minutes or more often if significant
changes in the patient’s condition occurs during the procedure:
a. BP
b. Heart rate
i. Continuous EKG rhythm is recommended for all patients receiving moderate
sedation/analgesia, and REQUIRED for patients with ASA score of |l or greater.
Respiratory rate
Adequacy of ventilation
EtCO; (except for mechanically ventilated patients)
O, Saturation

~ooo

g——Louslafsadafiordoradnlisusing-the-Ramsay Soale:
e ) :
H i _I atl_antan;aeus a_nd, ag_ltatael erfastess of beth
23; 23 _ Ipatl'.e”: seepeualh 'Ie oriented al Ad t;anqull
8y——5="~A-sluggish-response-to-loud-auditery-stimulus

g. Level of sedation for adults using the RASS:
. 4 Combatlve Overl combatlve or V|olent |mmed|ate dan

ger to staff




Patient Care Services Manual
Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedures Procedure
Page 8 of 17

Aggressive behavior towardstaff.

-4 Deep No response to voice, but any to movement to
o Sedatlon e PRYSical stimulation
AR esponsive  No:response tovoice or
h. Level of sedatlon for pedlatncs using the Aldrete Score:
Activity: Able to move 4 extremities voluntarily or on Score: 2
command
Able to move 2 extremities voluntarily or on Score: 1
command
Unable to move extremities voluntarily or on Score: 0
command
Respiration: Able to breathe deeply and cough freely Score: 2
Dyspnea, limited breathing, or tachypnea Score: 1
Apneic or mechanical ventilator Score: 0
Circulation: BP = 20% of pre-anesthetic level Score: 2
BP = 20% to 49% of pre-anesthetic level Score: 1
BP = 50% of pre-anesthetic level Score: 0
Conscious: Fully awake Score: 2
Arousable on calling Score: 1
Not responding Score: 0
Color: Pink Score: 2
Pale dusky blotchy, jaundiced, other Score: 1
Cyanotic Score: 0
i. Pain level
j- 02 saturation and heart rate are monitored continuously throughout the procedure. If 02

saturation is not maintained at above 90%, (unless baseline was below 90), obtain an

order for supplemental oxygen and/or anesthesia consult. Supplemental oxygen is also

recommended during the procedure for the following:

4.  ASA class Ill or greater patients

2)ii.  Patients whose O2 saturation reading is less than 90% pre-procedure while on
room air

k. The measuring of End tidal CO2 (EtCO,) via the Capnography machine is not a

diagnostic measurement. Rather, EtCO, measurements are to give a non-invasive

trending measurement. Therefore, it is important to establish a patient's baseline EtCO,

before sedation is given.

i If during the procedure hypoventilation or respiratory depression occurs,
intervene immediately by:

1) Repositioning the patient's head to open up the airway
2) Verbally or physically stimulate the patient to breathe
3) If the patient is apneic, start bag/mask ventilation.
ii. Respiratory depression can be defined as:
1) EtCO; values 10mmHG higher or lower than the patient's baseline with

an absolute maximum of 50mmHg



Patient Care Services Manual

Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedures Procedure
Page 9 of 17

m.

2) 10% change in EtCO; values above or below a patient's baseline
3) Apnea that last for 15 seconds or longer

iii. Important: Respiratory depression may occur after the procedure is complete.
That is, before the patient returns to a level of consciousness. Continue to
monitor the patient with EtCO, until the patient is fully awake and alert or returns
to baseline.

Medications and fluids including drugs, dosages, route, times and personnel

administering drugs are documented in the medical record.

Any unusual occurrences are documented.

D:E. INTRA-PROCEDURE PLANNED FOR DEEP SEDATION:

1.

1.

The RN shall document vital signs as requested by physician/LHRAHP/LIRAHP.

| E-F. POST PROCEDURE CARE, DOCUMENTATION AND DISCHARGE:

Patients status is assessed immediately after the procedure and/or administration of moderate

or deep sedation and vital signs and pain level are continuously monitored and documented
every 5 -15 minutes according to the patient’s condition or until the vital signs return to the
pre- procedure baseline (minimum recovery time is 30 minutes), and the following criteria are

met:
a. Patient achieves a score of 7 or greater or pre-sedation baseline, on the modified
Aldrete scoring system:
Activity: Able to move 4 extremities voluntarily or on command  Score: 2
Able to move 2 extremities voluntarily or on command  Score: 1
Unable to move extremities voluntarily or on command Score: 0
Respiration: Able to breathe deeply and cough freely Score: 2
Dyspnea, limited breathing, or tachypnea Score: 1
Apneic or mechanical ventilator Score: 0
Circulation: BP = 20% of pre-anesthetic level Score: 2
BP = 20% to 49% of pre-anesthetic level Score: 1
BP = 50% of pre-anesthetic level Score: 0
Conscious: Fully awake Score: 2
Arousable on calling Score: 1
Not responding Score: 0
b. If the patient does not meet the above criteria, the physician/tHRAHP is notified for
further orders.
c. If a reversal agent has been used the patient shall be recovered for an additional 90
minutes.
d. Patients must meet the following discharge criteria prior to being discharged home:
i. Pre-procedure LOC
ii. Pre-procedure Activity
iii. Vital signs within pre-procedure values
iv. Oral fluids retained
V. Pain controlled
vi. Voided
vii. Evaluate procedure site
viii. Dressing clean & dry
e. Obtain a Physician/HHRAHP order for discharge when all criteria are met.
f. The patient and/or designated adult receives discharge instructions if outpatient and

accompanied home by a responsible adult.

Monitoring Outcomes:
a.

The following outcome data shall be collected in all areas where moderate or deep
sedation/analgesia is performed. Data shall be aggregated by department/service and
practitioner specific. The anticipated needs of the patient are assessed to the plan for
the appropriate level of post procedure care including:

i. Airway intervention

55



Patient Care Services Manual
Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedures Procedure

Page 10 of 17

ii. Allergic reaction
il Anesthesia consult

iv. Aspiration

V. Death

vi. Deeper than desired level of sedation

vii. Rise or drop in systolic BP greater than 30 mmHg

viii. Sustained tachycardia (greater than150 beats/min.) or bradycardia (less than50
beats/min.) or serious arrhythmia (as monitored).

iX. Rise or drop in respiratory rate (+/- 6/min. from baseline); dyspnea, apnea,
hypoventilation or cyanosis

X. 02 saturation 5% below baseline

Xi. Marked decrease in patient responsiveness to verbalftactile stimulation

Xii. Other complications

xiii. Unplanned admit to ICU or Telemetry

xiv.  Unplanned admit to PACU

Xv. Use of Reversal agent
Pre procedural education, treatments, and services are provided according to the plan of care,
treatment, and services.
Patient Discharge:

a. Patients are discharged from the recovery area and the hospital by a qualified
physician/LIRAHP and by meeting discharge criteria.
b. Patients who have received sedation in the outpatient setting are discharged in the

company of a responsible, designated adult.

E-G. RELATED DOCUMENT(S|RESQURCES LOCATED ON-THE INTRANET:

1.

2.
3.
4.

Physician Pre-Procedure/Sedation Assessment Sample
Sedation Flow Sheet Sample

Sedation/Analgesia Audit Sample

Agents Commonly Used for Procedural Sedation

| 5+ Procedural-Verification-Cheecklist
| G:H. REFERENCES:

1.

Eall ol

Hospital Accreditation Standards 2006 (PC13.10, 13.20, 13.30, 13.40)

Rothrock, Jane C. (2007), Alexander's Care of the Patient in Surgery. Mosby, Co. 13" Edition.
AORN Perioperative Standards and Recommended Practices, 2011 Edition.

ASA Physical Status Classification System. (2014, October 15th). Retrieved January 11th,
2016, from American Society of Anesthesiologists:
https://www.asahq.org/resources/clinical-information/asa-physical-status-classification-
system

(2006). In U. L, S. K, & L. M, Thelan's Critical Care Nursing Diagnosis and Management
(5th Edition ed., p. 153). St. Louis, Missouri: Mosby Elsevier.

56



Patient Care Services Manual
Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedures Procedure
Page 11 of 17

PHYSICIAN PRE-PROCEDURE/ SEDATION ASSESSMENT SAMPLE

Physician: Procedure:

Allergies

Immediately Prior To This Procedure

O History & Physical completed and sttached. [Power Nate: ED
History of difficulty with anesthesia/Sedation: [lves [o

Q Interval Change in patient's stetus Olves DANo since History & Physical dste

Ht:
Wt

(explain

NPO Status:

Airway Assessment WNL (mouth opening, neck ROM, Teeth Intact) Dlives Oho:

CEndotracheal/ Tracheostomy Tube

hysician’s verification of Informed Consent:

0 | heve discussedthe following withthe patient/atient legal representative: an explanation of the procedure(s), its benefits

bnd risks, sretthe possible alternatives and their benefits and passikle risks the potential problemsthat may occur during
recuperation, the likelihood of achievingtreatment goals, and any research or economic intesests1 may haveregarding

the treatment. All guestions have been answeredtothe petient's/Petient legal representetive's satisfaction. Additional

comments, if necessary:

] ASA Liassitication |

g Class| Normei heeafth patient. Lbiess Il A petiert with severe systemic disease the limits
activity but is not incepaciteting.

O Class| Apstient withmid systemicdisease. [lass IV Apatient with anincapacitsting systemic disease

O Emergency medical condition

thet is a constant threat to life.

l Plan tor beaétlon

|

Plan:

O  Moderste Sedation/Analgesia

0O  Deep Sedstion/Analgesia

O  Supplemental Oxygen

a v

O  Petient is an appropriste candidete for planned sedation

LE Continue sedation at presentlevel
Medicstion:

Post »edation Plan ot Lare

PACU/OP-PACU tb ICU
PACU/SPRA to Telemetry
OP-PACU then discharge home

ICU-TELE direct
ACSMon-Monitored bed

tooocaog

LIRemaininICU

PACUIOP-PACU to non-monitored bed LEEmergency Department
Comments:

O  Patient re-evaluated immediately prior to sedation. [See Flow Sheet)

Signature
Attending Physician:

Date: Time:

@ TriCity Medical Center

4002 \ista Wiy » Oceanside - CA - 92056

PHYSICIAN PRE-PROCEDURE/
T

SEDATION ASSESSMENT
IRy, 35

AT Patet o

57



Patient Care Services Manual

Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedures Procedure

Page 12 of 17

SEDATION FLOW SHEET SAMPLE

Procedure paget of2
Allergies Dete
MODIE[EDALDRETE AR ”.‘n sLS; MODIEEDALORETE r R lbise]
SIS NG RS TER R J iS: | SEDRINEEVETEY b b
Fole to move 4 extremiies vdurtarily or on command 2 BF = 201 of pre-anesthetic level
Able to move 2 extremties vourtarily or on command 1 BP =2D% to 49% of pre-anestheticlevel @™
nab!! maove extremnties wilunarly oron command 0 BP =50 % of m-anesthenclevel
RESE) o RS R TR FCENSEols e v
Fble to breahe deeply and cough frecly Fulty awde
Dyspnea, limted breathing or tachypnea o awsable\on cdling ™
neic or on mechanical ventilator
CalC eI A S G OREDeOrekimed

Pre Procedure Target Pan Score

Immedlate

Intra-Procedure

vitalsigns

Minimalhy

avery S minutes

hased on patients

condiion

Immediste Pest-Procedure

yjtalsigns
Post- Procedure

yita)signs

exeny 15 minues

wati patient meets

critetiafor discharge or

dissantinue 1:1

o

d Loc Level of Consclousnuc ScorepatlemsLOC 1-6 using the RASSRamesay Scale listed

hledlcatlm Totals
Signature Deteflme
Affix Pdiert Label

@ Tri-City Medical Center

4002 ‘ista Wiy « Oceanside « CA =92056

SEDATION FLOW SHEET
bbb bloged |
8720-1080
P 81D

58



Patient Care Services Manual

Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedures Procedure

Page 13 of 17

Sedation Flow Sheet
HURSING HOTES
LIV INTAKE: PO NTAKE CUTPUT:
IV Discontinued @ ' Catheter
RHYTHM STRIPS

N/A
Pre-Procedure Activity Met Not Met NIA
\Vital signs within pre-procedure values Met Not Met NFA
Oral Fluids Retained Met Not Met N/A
Pain Controlled Met Not Met N/A
Voided Met Not Met N/A
Evaluate procedure Site Met Not Met N/A
Dressing Clean and dry No N/A  Changed X:
Signature DetefTime

59



Patient Care Services Manual
Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedures Procedure
Page 14 of 17

SEDATION / ANALGESIA AUDIT SAMPLE




€T/10 paiepdp) 1se]

(papaau se ujw ¢-z Atana
8wz'0-1°0 Aq pamoyjoy

'ozuaq
yum Buiuiquwod uaym
350p aonpay ‘jAuejuay
'SA syuaned pajeyosnsal
Japun ul Ajjezadsa
uojsuajodAy pue asea|as
aulwe)sty alop ‘jAueiua)
*SA AJlAnDE JO uopienp

yses upjs pue ‘wseds
Aseljiq ‘uopediysuoa ‘Suiiwoa
‘edsneu ‘uoissaidap Alojesdsal

s1Yy -z ‘uonay jo uone.ng

ulw 02 :199)3 Yead

(3s0q/3w ¢ xew

8%/8w 1°0) sasop yeadal
UM $150403U 3Nsstl 0} anp
PapuaWLWI0I3L 10U “OS/INI
ainpalosd/buw 0z-ST: XYW

(SN2 3y u 101dadas
plotdo 03 spuig)

Ajlenniu) Swyy'p) auoxolen 133u0) pue 135UO JAMO]S ‘eipsedApelq ‘uojsusljodAy ujw €- 33suQ {sjuatuadul Sw -2 Al 21302484 ploido auydiop
‘auydiow
uey3 uojsuajodAy
pue asesjas aujwelsy ulWw 09-0€ :UoHdY JO uonlelng
ss97 ‘sauidaze|pozuaq yses uys pue ‘wseds bow 05z 40 ainpaszoid (SND au3 ut
(papaau se ujw g-z A1aas Yum Sujuigwod uaym asop Asel|iq ‘uoprediysuod ‘Buiiwon ujw §T-0T 119943 yead Jad By/Bow Z :XYN 10)da33. pioido 03 spuig)
3wz 0-T'0 Aq pamojjo} | 32npay ‘uoiyde jo uoieInp ‘easneu ‘uolssaidap Asojesidsas (azewtiqns)
Ajjeniul 8wy 0) auoxojen HOoYs pue 13suo NP ‘eipesApeuq ‘uoisualodAy uiw g-T 33suQ ‘By/82w T-6°0 A1 213031eU ploidQ jAuejuag
'ssaJys|p AJojeaidsal
40 %51 9sealdap o) ploido
Yum Juuiquuod uaym
%0¢£-5Z Aq asop onpay ‘uopey8e siy 8-9 :(Od/AlJuonaYy j0 uonelng
‘UoI3I. JO 13SUO JAMO]S 0} [ea1xopeJed pue ‘uoisia paJaniq uoissaidap
sasop 3anp uollepas |einpadold ul ‘e|pJedApe.q ‘uoisuaiodAy »xUONIENSIVIWPE Od YIm SND Ul Bunnsas
¥ 30 XYIN YUM ujw T Azaas Aypnn payun “wedazelof ‘ssauizzip ‘eixeje asned 1984J3 J0) LW OF 1SE3} 1B Mojje ‘8w 01-5 :0d 101d2231 ygyo o3 spuig)
jeadai Aew ‘spuodas qT pue wejozepiuw ueyl os[e Aepy “2na3o Aew uaissaidap uondiosqe a|qelaiun {wnijep)
1310 3w Z°0} luszewn)4 uoioe jo uolelnp Jaguo Je|nasenoipleds pue Alojesdsay uiw s-T {{A13=suQ W ST :Al auidazeipozuag wedazeiq
*ssaJ)sip Aojeuidsal
103514 aseasdap o) ploido
YUM Suiuiquiod uaym
%0¢€-5Z Aq asop @anpay ‘uoneyde
*UOf)D. JO 13SUD J1BMO|S 0} |eaixopesed pue ‘uoisia palin|q sS4y 8-9 :(Al)uopdy Jo uoneing {uoissasdap
sasop anp uonepas jzanpadold ul ‘ejpJeadpeaq ‘uolsualodiy SND w1 Bunnsal
¥ JO XY Yyum ujw T Aane Ay(nn payuw -wejozepiw ‘ssau|zz|p ‘ejxeje asned ulw 0Z-0T :(A1)122443 jead Joyd@zas ygvo o3 spulg)
jeadas Aew ‘spuoaas ST ueyj} uonae Jo uanesnp osje Aey “Jna20 Aewr uojssaidap Sw T-50 21 {ueany)
Jan0 3w z'0) luazewny4 Jaduo| pue 135U0 JaMO(S Je|nasenoipied pue Adojelidsay uiw Z-€ {(A1)19suQ /3w y0°0-20'0 :AI auidaze|pozuag wedazeso
ulw ot-02 :(M)uonay jo uoneing
*ssalys|p Atojesidsal ‘uopeyde uiw 2-g :{Al) 193443 yead
3051 aseasdsp o) proido |eaixopeled pue ‘UOISIA paLiniq (uoissaidap
sasop Yum Suiuiquod uaym %0E ‘elpJesApelq ‘uoisuajodAy «xUONEISIuIWpE Od 24/3w 8'0-5'0 :0d SND ut Supyynsau
¥ 30 XWW Yim uiw T Adans -6z Aq asop aanpay ‘uonoe ‘ssaurzzip ‘elxeje Isned YUM 13312 10) UIW OE-ST MOJ|e ., /3w 1'0-20°0 NI J1031danal ygyo o3 spuig)
1eadas Aew ‘spuodas GT | Jo uonesnp poys pue 33suo osje Ae *1nd20 Aew uoissaidap (pasiap)
Jano 3w z°0) luszewnyd Jgjndsenoipled pue Aiojesndsay ulw -1 {Aa9suQ /8w y0'0-20°0 Al audazejpozuag wejozepin

321nb apnjoul sadejuenpy

TUSHIAIY

SLNAWWOD

SNOLLOVAY |-

"9NYa ISYIAQY.

NOWIY 40 NOLLYYNG:
ANV 1934430Y3d 1SN0 -

+~NOILYHLSNINGY"

“At) SINII3CIND ONISOA

NOLLV
30/ INSINYHIIW 8 SSV1D

onYa

NOILYA3s TvHNA3ID0Ud 404 a3Isn AINOWIAIOD SINIOY

21 )0 G| abed
2INpa0Ld saunpasald dusoubeyq Jo oynadelay ) Buung pasn eisabjeuyjuonepasg
|enuey SaoIneg ased Juaned

61




€T/10 paiepdn 3se]

‘sproido yym pauiquiod
uaym Ajjerdadss ‘uoissasdap
Asojedidsal pioae

01 ysnd A] MOTS "eisadjeue
pue uoiepas yjoq
S3JNPOL4 ‘uoisuaadiy

10 ‘4| payens|a
‘swsAinaue yum suaned

W gg-ST :uoiY Jo uoijeing

fainpasosd
4ad) by/Bwig :XYN

/8w -7 2

{uojsuarodAy

Buisnes anoyum

uonepas pue eisagjeue
3suau s3onpo.d
‘Juawuosaua Suipunouns
343 WOoJJ palerdossip St
waned ayl yaym ut arels
ay-onds|eled e saonpoid)

Ul pioAy “eipJedAyoe) pue J3ayisaue (LT EN)
INON UOISUDIYIJAH 9SNEd ue) ulw -7 18suQ fy/8wrt-z'0:Al [esauad anneisossiqg aurwe}a)
*spiojdo y3Im pauiquiod
uaym ssauisip Atojesrdsas ASuajje 835 ue Jo As0jsiy e {s8nup auidazeipozuaq
104 uonnes ‘X3Y3 disadjeue | yum syusned ui suoideas JdLsyy pue ‘@jednjiqieq ‘proido
ON (ND1/Q3) eiplesipeiq 0} palejaiun Ajjeinaniis
pue uoisualodiy CRIITETY ‘sansadoud annepas
10} pasoyjuow syuaied paseq pidj| woJy uoidaul pue 2113Y1S3ue |BI3UIY)
0) pajaLIsad ate sasop a|qissod pue ‘ejpsesipeaq uiW GT-0T :U0[RIY 40 uonelng 24npadoid/ bus 00T ‘XYW {ueandig)
snjog ‘uolae jo uojieinp | ‘seiwylAytie 1ayjo pue ‘ajoishse punodusod 2jjouayd lojodosd
INON 10ys pue 3asuo pidey §20}q Leay ‘uoisualodAy Spu0Ias Qg $39SUQ /3wt :snjoq Al an8Yyisaue/10udiy
*$34nZ13s Suipnjouy
SJUBA3 3SJBAPE JO YS yses upys S1Y $-Z :uonaY Jo uoheing
paseasdu) 03 anp Alap|a pue ‘wseds Aseljiq ‘uopednsuod (SND a3 us s01dasau
(papaau se uiw g-7 Aaas Y1 Ul PaPUBWIWOIAI ‘Buiwon ‘easneu ‘uoissaldap Jnoy T 11333 jead 3Unpadtosd/BupST XYN ploido 0} spuig)
Swz 0-1°0 Aq pamoijoy 10u s1 asn “spiotdo Jayio Asojendsal ‘eipsesApelq (josowaq)
Ajfentul Swiyp) auoxojey J9n0 adejueape Jofew o ‘uoisuajodAy ‘sainziag ulw g :3asuQ sjuswaldu) Sw 05-52 Al Jn02.eu ploidQ aupuaday

21 40 9| abed
ainpasold sainpasold asoubelq Jo onnadesay) Buung pasn eisableuyuonepas
[enuepy SeaSS ased Jusied

62



€T/10 paiepdn iseq

"POT-68:{T)ST'666T WD 24D W) “e)saBjeue snouanenu| “d 3|pIVIN ‘T

892-£vZ:(Z)VT ‘00T BILBWY YLION JO SJjulD |eunsaluloIsen 'saIsadjeue pue saalepas Jo saiaupjodewseyd pue ASojodewseyd “ys HGsaN ' UIOH '

*3u| dw0D-IX37 PUB UCIIBIZ0SSY |EDNINADJEWIRYL UBDLDWY ‘UOHIPT TT "jooqpueH uonewrsou) 8niQ 1] 3aue ‘dw uewupjos 17 Suonswiy ‘g9 Adeq
W
1Sa2UDIBYRY

awwos ui ‘ewapa Aleuow|nd Ajajewnn pue ‘uojsuaniadAy ‘auoy anayiedwAs ul adins u) 3 nsad Ued ‘pliw Ji Ajjenadsa ‘uoissaadap Asoleuidsal so1j0DIeU 3s1aAaL 0] (asop Bul Q) Auoex|eu Jo asn

(28e jo sieah g9<) syuaned Ajap|a u) sasop (asealdap %0E-ST) 49)jews asn
eaude pue uoissasdap Asorendsal 1oy soyuow ‘asadieue ueyy Jaduoj 3se| Aew s3aayya uoissardap Aiojesiday
$21302.18u ptotdo pue sautdazelpozuaqg Jo SUOITBUIGLIOD Yum uolssaldap Jejndeaoiped pue uoissaidap Asojelidsal o )i paseaJtoul ue s; assy)
"m:o_uzmu

"0T02-600 ‘0140 ‘uospny

T

sased

(v}
(€)
(@)
(1)

28e.3A8q J3Y30 10 €(03 JO (1ejezay)
v/N 109}43 40} S3INUIW OE MO|lY 8%/1w €'0-2'0 Ul paxiw ‘asop T Joj 8%/3w -5 aujwe3a)|
Fw T 01 80’0 250P |€10] [ENSN *JIMO] S| JOAYI|YM-Aazegm Jw T Jo Bx/3w
50'0 JO 3SOp 2AREINWIND [103 XBW B 0] (S3SOP 7 JO Xew) anujw AIdA3 uay |
*SpuodIs S s3)e (Bwz g Jo xew) 8y/5w 100 3eadas Aew ‘spuodas ST J9A0 ainpasoud (wnyep)
uand (8w z'g:asop xew) BH/3W T0°0 LIS 1P(0 Je3A T< UaIpIYD Al lUazZEWINiY 1039449 40§ SINUIW 09-0€ MOV 19d 3w QT 4O Xew ‘je1das 10 Od ‘34/3w £'0-2°0 wedazerg
BW T 03 80°0 95OP (B10) [ENS(] "JAMO]| S| JBAIYIIYM~13ADIEEM S T 10 B))/5W
50°0 JO 2SOP IAIIRJNLLIND |210) XBL B 0) (S3SOP  JO Xew ) ainuiw AJaAS Uay L
*Spu0das G Jaye (Bwyz g 4o xew) 8y/3w 10 0 1eadas Aew ‘spuodas ST Jan0 ainpasosd sad Sw oz xew (3%/8w g {ensn) (pasJap)
uani8 (8w z'g:asop xew) §x/8wW 100 HEIS :pjo JBIA T< URIP|IYD Al IUaZEWN}Y 198442 40} SNUIW OE-0Z MOV |e109y 10 Od ‘8%/8w T-52°0 wejozepin
|es4aAay SJUBWWOD) {o1neipad) asoq WI/AI J13eIpad-uonedpa
(28e jo suedA gT Japun)
1v1234/04d-5s39V3IS0A JI¥LVIa3d
91eplwol] yim paliwi) st pjo sieal 0T Ueyl ssaj uapjiyd ui uoljewrojut m:_moo ok
350p/3/3W T-5°0 Al {1ejeraN)
v/N uiw oz A1dA3 3s0p/3y /8w 5-7 (NI aujweldy
(a1epiwy)
v/N ulw 5 AJane 33/3w 50°0 /Bwzo-10 NePIW0IT .,
8w T 03 80'0 250P (2101 JBNS) "JAMO| S| JBABYIIYMFDADIEYM Sl T JO 33/3w
S0°0 JO 950p 2ANEINWND {230} XBWw B 0] (S3SOP t 4O Xew) 33nup AS3Aa uay)
'SpU02as gf Jayje (Swz'g jo xew) 3y/8w 10°0 1eadas Aew ‘spuoaas ST Jano {ueany)
uanid (8w z'p:as0p xew) 3x/3w T0°0 MeIS :pjo JEIA T< UBIP[IYD AT [lUIZEWN| uiw gz Aan3 (asop/3w 500 1ensn) /3w 60°0-20°0 wedazes0q
‘Jw
0T 03 dn sajnuiw g-z AJaaa jeadad ‘asuodsal ou Y ‘Sw g 8y gz< 40 plo SJeadkh §<
‘papaau i sajnupu € 03 T AJaAa Jeadal (Sw z jo xew) 8y/8w {josawaq)
T°0 84 0Z > 10 p|o siead g 0y (SIueyul :njewsald Buipn|auy) YiKg 1Al SUOXOjEN uiw g Aang ainpasold Jad Sw ST jo xew ‘Sy/3w 1-5°0 aulpusadapy
‘Bw
0T 01 dn sainuiw £-z AJana 1eadal ‘asuodsal ou J1 ‘Sul 7 3y gz< 4o plo sseah s< aJnpadoud
‘papaau Ji saInuiw € 03 Z AJaaa jeadal (3w g Jo xew) 8y/8w 10} 12301 8%/83w € xew 03 dn wjw ST AJaA3 (ezewygns)
T'0 3 0z > 10 pjo siedh § 0} (siuejul anzewaud Buipnjpul) yuig :A| auoxojen ujw ge-gT AIan3 1eadas Aew 3y/8ow 50 yam wels '8y/8w z-50 [Auejua4
dw T 0} 80'(0 3SOP |210) |[ENS(] ‘1IMO| SI JBABYIHYM-39A3EHM 3w T J0 B/3w
(pasiap)
wejozepi

S0°0 4O 3SOP ARBININD |BIO] Xeuw e 0} (SISOP ¢ JO Xew) 3InUIW AIBA3 uay]
'SPU023s G 1aye (Bwyz o Jo xew) By/3w 10 0 1eadas Aew !spuodas ST Jano

uanid (3w z-p:asop xew) /3w TO'0 VEIS :P|o Je3A T< UBIPJIYD AL fUIZEWN|Y

ulw S-£D

Jw g asop R0y xew ‘8%/3w T°0-50'0

{du1e1pad) asoq

JeAuR)U) 3S0Q) |EIUIWIRIIL|

WI/Al 213eIpad-uonedipay

|esianay

(28e Jo sieah ZT Japun)

AlI-S39VSOQa J1ULVIA3ad

ainpadsold sainpasold oisoube)q Jo apnadesay} Buung pasn eisebieuyjuonepag
[enuEpy S9JKUBS ale) Jusled

2140 2| sfied

63



)
‘Q) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES POLICY MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: 6/12 SUBJECT: Self-Administered Continuous
Subcutaneous Infusion of Insulin
(Insulin Pump Therapy) for the
Acute Care Patient

REVISION DATE: 10/13 POLICY NUMBER: NEW

Department Approval: 09/16

Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 444310/16

Nurse Executive Council Approval: 44/4310/16

Diabetes Task Force Approval: 12/16

Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: 02/4703/17

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 02/1404/17

Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 02/14

Board of Directors Approval: 02/14

A. POLICY:

1.

Continuous subcutaneous infusion of insulin (CSII) or insulin pump therapy is an option for
hospitalized adult patients who desire intensive insulin management. CSll is not initiated in the
hospital. This policy includes self-management of a Continuous Glucose Monitor, if applicable.

B. CONTRAINDICATIONS:

1.
2.

3.

4.
5,

Altered level of consciousness or change in judgment.

Receiving medications with the potential of inducing altered mental awareness or level of
consciousness as determined by attending/consulting physician.

Mental and/or physical inability to independently manage the pump (dosing changes and boluses,
settings infusion sets, tubing changes, reservoir and insulin, etc.)

Risk for suicide.

Other circumstances identified by the attending/consulting physician.

C. PROCEDURE: PATIENT ASSESSMENT:

1+

Verify that the patient's attending physician has initiated the “Insulin Pump (CSlI) -
Subcutaneous Self-Admlnlstered” PowerPlan written-an-orderto-allow-pationt self-

Notify Biomedical Engineering to evaluate the pump and Continuous Glucose Meter for safety and
obvious damage per Patient Care Services (PCS) Policy: Medical Equipment Brought into

the Facilityimmediately.

Complete the “Initial Assessment for Insulin Pump Patients” .Verify that patient

a. Is alert to time, person and place on admission and then at least once per shift.
b. Is able to independently perform psychomotor tasks to manage the insulin infusion as
follows:

i Knows and can change basal rate(s).

ii. Knows and can manage mealtime insulin infusions based on insulin to carb
ratio(s).

iii. Knows and can manage correction infusions based on insulin sensitivity factor(s).

iv. Can change insertion site, infusion set, tubing insertion-set, and reservoir with
insulin every 72 hours and prn.

64



| Patient Care Services-Poli
Self Administered Continuous Infusion of Insulin (Insulin Pump Therapy)

Page 2 of 7

NOTE: there might be slight differences in supplies depending on the
pump.
iwv. Fora Continuous Glucose Monitor (CGM), can change the sensor at
appropriate intervals.
c. Has his/her own supplies at the bedside necessary for self-management: infusion sets,
tubing, reservoirs, and insulin, etc.
NOTE: Insulin brought in from home for use in the hospital must be ordered by the
physician and verified by the pharmacy according to Patient Services (PCS) Medications
Brought in by the Patient Policy.

d. Has signed the Insulin Pump Therapy Patient Agreement

e. Is willing to keep written records of insulin infusions using the Patient Insulin Pump
Record

fT ______ aala - = Mananag ant

Check point of care (POC) blood glucose levels as ordered by the physician using the hospital

meter or readings from the patient's continuous glucose monitor.

a. If 2 consecutive POC blood glucose readings are above 250 mg/dL (200 mg/dL, if
pregnant) within a 4-6 hour interval, obtain order forserd a urine specimen to checkthe
lab for ketones and instruct the patient to change the infusion set, insertion site, and
reservoir with insulin.

b. Call the physician for a correction dose of lispro insulin to be administered
subcutaneously by the nurse when the POC blood glucose is above 250 or if the pump
is disconnected for more than 30 minutes.

Discontinue the pump when ordered by the physician or if the patient’s level of consciousness

suddenly changes.

D. RESPONSIBLITIES:

1.
2.
3.

Patient must change entire pump set-up including insertion site, infusion set, and reservoir with

insulin at least every 72 hours and PRN.

Nurse will assess insertion site every shift for redness, signs of infection, purulent drainage, or

leakage.

Patient will change infusion set, tubing, and insertion site if:

a. Tubing is clogged or infusion set is leaking

b. Site is red, painful, irritated, and/or there are signs of infection

c. Two consecutive POC blood glucose readings are above 250 mg/dL (200mg/dL if
pregnant) within a 4-6 hour interval.

E. MEDICATION INTERVENTIONS:

1.

If patient is NO LONGER ALERT or any of the other assessment criteria have changed:

a. Explain to patient and/or patient's family that the pump will be removed for patient's
safety.

b. Remove the pump and infusione set and instruct a family member to take the pump
home. If family member is not available, send pump to Pharmacy for safe-keeping.

c. Continue to measure POC blood glucose levels as ordered.

d. Obitain orders for basal insulin, mealtime insulin, and correction insulin. Alternatively,
begin continuous infusion of IV regular insulin according to physician orders.

e. A pump should not be discontinued without starting either subcutaneous or intravenous
insulin at least 60 minutes before the subcutaneous pump infusion is removed.

f. Continue subcutaneous or IV insulin orders until patient is assessed by physician to be

able to once again, independently, self-manage the pump.

F. SPECIAL PROCEDURES:

1.

For procedures requiring sedation (surgery, cardiac catheterization, bronchoscopy, endoscopy,
etc.), the pump will be disconnected. Contact the physician for specific orders for starting IV or
SC insulin therapy.

65



| Patient Care Services
Self Administered Continuous Infusion of Insulin (Insulin Pump Therapy)

Page 3of 7
2.

w

Noo A

®

Pumps should never be exposed to x-ray beams which may cause the pump to empty its entire
reservoir of insulin and potentially cause severe hypoglycemia and death.

For CT scans and general x-rays, it is not necessary to disconnect the pump if the pump is not
in the area of interest. It can be covered with a lead apron.

For MRIs, disconnect the pump. Remove the insertion set ONLY if it is metal.

For mammograms and bone density tests, it is not necessary to disconnect the pump.

For ultrasound, it is not necessary to disconnect the pump.

If the pump is stopped for over 30 minutes, the pump may need to be reconnected for a dose of
insulin prior to continuing the radiology procedure to prevent rapid onset DKA.

in case of hypoglycemia, treat per PCS Hypoglycemia Management in the Adult Patient
Standardized Procedure.

G. PUMP INFORMATION:

1

SN

6.

An external insulin pump is about the size of a pager and contains a reservoir filled with rapid
acting insulin (lispro, aspart, or glulisine), has a computer chip, and a battery-operated pump.
Many pump models exist; some have visible tubing, others are self-contained and disposable.
An insulin pump does not automatically control blood glucose levels. Pump users check their
blood glucose levels 4-10 times/day (8-12 times/day when pregnant), calculate doses of insulin
based on the blood glucose level and/or carbohydrate intake and program the pump to deliver a
dose (bolus) of insulin. The pump is also programmed to deliver continuous basal insulin.

a. All insulin is delivered through an infusion set

b. The patient changes the insertion site, infusion set, and reservoir with insulin every 72
hours, or more often as needed, to prevent infection and to promote good insulin
delivery.

Refer to the 800 number on the back of the pump/CGM if needed for technical support.
Diabetic Ketoacidosis (DKA) CAUTION: The effect of rapid acting insulin lasts about 4 hours:
therefore, if insulin delivery is interrupted, DKA can develop rapidly in both non-pregnant and
pregnant patients. If the insulin pump is removed, physician orders for either subcutaneous
(SC) or intravenous (V) insulin should start immediately.

NOTE: DKA is not likely to occur in patients with type 2 diabetes

The most common causes of DKA in pump users:

a. Insertion set/tubing is clogged, kinked or leaking

b. Site has NOT been changed recently and site is irritated

c. Failure to treat hyperglycemia appropriately

d. Insulin has lost potency in the vial of insulin currently in use (check expiration date).

Correction doses:

a. Most pumps have a built-in feature to limit the amount of insulin delivery for correction
doses.

b. Correction dosing is NOT advised more than once every two hours

When the pump is discontinued, the patient may resume pump therapy with a physician order.

H. KEY POINTS:

1.
4:2.

Insulin is delivered either by pump or injection—NOT BOTH
Patlent to self-malntaln fastlng and pre- meal blood glucose range -190—449140-180 mg/dL—and

A elsles 80-mgld cal-care-blood-glucose-ranae-s . POC
blood glucose Ievels W|Il be checked by RN using the hospltal meter or readlngs from the patient's
continuous glucose meter.
For pregnant patients, POC blood glucose targets are as follows:
a. Antepartum targets: Fasting 70-99 mg/dL; one hour after first bite of a meal 100-129

mg/dL
b. Intrapartum (during labor): 70-110 mg/dL
c. Postpartum and breastfeeding: Fasting 70-99 mg/dL, one hour after the first bite of a meal

100-150 mg/dL. Higher targets may be set for individual patient needs.

66



| Patient Care Services-Poli
Self Administered Continuous Infusion of Insulin (Insulin Pump Therapy)
Page 4 of 7

34.  The bedside glucose monitor allows for necessary actions to be taken quickly along with follow-up
care. However, for accurate Nova StatStrip readings, the hematocrit range must be 25-60%. If
HCT is less than 25% the blood glucose may be inaccurately high;; if greater than 60%, blood
glucose may be inaccurately low.

DOCUMENTATION:
1. Assure patient has signed the Patient Agreement for Self-Administered Continuous

Subcutaneous Infusion of Insulin

Complete the Initial Assessment for Insulin Pump Patients

Document insertion site location on the Patient Insulin Pump Record

Provide Patient with a supply of the Patient Insulin Pump Record.

Document POC blood glucose readings on the Patient Insulin Pump Record and in the

Electronic Medical Record.

The Patient Insulin Pump Records are scanned into the medical record at discharge.

Ensure that the patient records all self-administered mealtime and correction doses of insulin;

the basal rate and changes to the basal rate, and the grams of carbohydrate consumed at each

meal.

+8. Documentation on the Patent Insulin Pump record must include the date of each infusion
set change and insertion site change (if not the same as set change date).

FORM(S):

1. Patient Agreement for Self-Administered Continuous Subcutaneous Infusion of Insulin
2. Patient Insulin Pump Record
3. Initial Assessment for Insulin Pump Patients

Al

NOo

RELATED DOCUMENTS:

1. PCS Medications Brought in by the Patient Policy

2. PCS Hypoglycemia Management in the Adult Patient Standardized Procedure
2:3. PCS Policy: Policy: Medical Equipment Brought Into the Facility

REFRENCES:

1. American Diabetes Association, Clinical Practice Recommendations — 2002, Continuous
Subcutaneous Insulin Infusion; Diabetes Care 25: S116

2. American Diabetes Association, Standards of Medical Care — 2006, Diabetes Care in the
Hospital; Diabetes Care 29: S4- 42S

3. Cook, et al. Use of Subcutaneous Insulin Infusion (Insulin Pump) Therapy in the Hospital Setting

— Proposed Guidelines and Outcomes Measures; The Diabetes EDUCATOR; Volume 31,
Number 6, November/December 2005
4, Pickup, J and Keen, H. Continuous Subcutaneous Insulin infusion at 25 years: Evidence base
for the expanding use of insulin pump therapy in Type 1 Diabetes; Diabetes Care 25: 1079-1087
5. The Diabetes Educator. Vol. 31 No. 6, November/December 2005. The use of Subcutaneous
Insulin Infusion (Insulin Pump) in the Hospital Setting: Proposed Guidelines and Outcome

Measures.

6. American Association of Diabetes Educators, Inpatient Position Statement. The Diabetes
Educator, In Press, 2009.

7. American Diabetes Association: Managing Preexisting Diabetes for Pregnancy. Diabetes Care,

Volume Number 5, May 2008

67



| Patient Care Services
Self Administered Continuous Infusion of Insulin (Insufin Pump Therapy)

Page 5 of 7
PATIENT AGREEMENT FOR SELF-ADMINISTERED
CONTINUOUS SUBCUTANEOUS INFUSION OF INSULIN

For your safety and optimal medical care during this hospitalization, we request that you agree to the following
recommendations. If you believe that you cannot agree to these recommendations, we would like to treat your
diabetes with insulin injections and request that you discontinue the use of your insulin pump.

1. | agree to hold harmless Tri-City Medical Center from any recalls, alerts and preventive maintenance
brought to my attention for my insulin pump and continuous glucose meter, if applicable.

2. | agree to accept total responsibility for maintaining the pump and related equipment as well as self-
administered insulin boluses and basal rates.

3. My insulin pump and Continuous Glucose Meter, if applicable, is approved by the Federal Drug
Administration (FDA).

4. | agree to allow Biomedical Engineering to evaluate my pump and Continuous Glucose Meter, if
applicable for safety and possible damage.

5. The make, model, and serial number (usually found on the back of the pump) are as follows:

6. Insulin Pump make & model Serial Number

During my hospital stay, | agree to:

1. Write my basal rate, mealtime, and correction insulin boluses on the Patient Insulin Pump Record so
the nurse can monitor my care.
2. Write the carbohydrate grams or servings consumed for each meal on the Patient Insulin Pump
Record.

3. Write the insertion site, infusion set, and reservoir with insulin changes on the Patient Insulin Pump

Record.

Change my basal rate if determined necessary by my physician.

Change the insertion site, infusion set, and reservoir with insulin every 72 hours or more often if

a. The insertion site is red, irritated, painful, or if there are signs of infection

b. The infusion set is leaking or the tubing is clogged

c. Two consecutive capillary blood glucose (or CGM) readings are greater than 250 mg/dL (200 mg/dL
if pregnant)

d. A "no delivery” alarm occurs on the pump

6. Provide my own insulin pump supplies including insulin, which | agree to allow verification-by-the
pharmacy to verify.

7. Allow the nurses and physicians caring for me to view the Patient Insulin Pump Record as needed.

8. Allow the nurse to check my pump insertion site for irritation, redness or leaks.

9. Report any symptoms of low blood sugar.

10. Report any pump problems immediately to my nurse.

11. Ask questions if | do not understand my doctor’s orders for my insulin pump.

12. Have my pump disconnected if | can no longer, independently, manage my pump and | agree, then, to
an alternate insulin delivery method.

13. Send my pump and supplies home with a family member for safekeeping if my pump is disconnected or
have Tri-City Medical Center's Pharmacy department store my pump for safe-keeping.

o s

| also understand that my insulin pump may be discontinued or disconnected (either temporarily or longer) and
an alternate method of insulin delivery used for any of the following situations:

1. Changes in my level of consciousness, awareness, or judgment.

2. Changes in my physical ability to manage my pump.

3. Radiological procedure such as x-rays, CT scans, MRIs or other procedures.

4. Other reasons determined to be medically necessary by my doctor.

Patient Signature: Date:

Witness Signature: Date:

68



| Patient Care Services-Poli
Self Administered Continuous Infusion of Insulin (Insulin Pump Therapy)

Page 6 of 7

PATIENT INSULIN PUMP RECORD
To be kept at the bedside for the patient to complete during hospitalization. Start a new record each day.
DATE: PATIENT NAME:

Patient to record the following:

e Enter date of ast infusion set change and insertion site change (if not the same as set change
date: (must change every 72
hours)

Location of insertion site:
¢ Circle the type of insulin currently in your pump: Humalog (lispro) Novolog (aspart) Apidra (glulisine)
| ¢ Nurse will record the Point of CareCapillary Blood Glucose (GBG) readings that are obtained from the
hospital meter or you will record your Continuous Glucose Monitor (CGM) readings before meals.
o Estimated total carbohydrate grams or servings for each meal

TELL YOUR NURSE IF:
¢ Something is wrong with your pump, or you do not feel capable of managing your pump
¢ You notice redness at the insertion site, or you changed your insertion site
¢ You have symptoms of low blood sugar or high blood sugar
e Your pump is unplugged for more than 30 minutes

CGM/ CARBS BOLUS
TIME done by (grams or rate Comments

nurse servings) Mealtime | Correction

Basal rate is the "background” insulin, the amount needed to maintain glucose levels when not eating.
Bolus dose is the “mealtime” or “correction” insulin used to manage spikes in glucose.

69



| Patient Care Services
Self Administered Continuous Infusion of Insulin (Insulin Pump Therapy)
Page 7 of 7

Initial Assessment for Insulin Pump Patients

1. Has the attending physician completed the Power Plan Insulm Pump (CSlI) - Subcutaneous Self-
Admlmstered der-Se £ HS-Stbet Hs-tRfus St

O Yes O No
2. Is the patient alert to time, place, and person? O Yes O No

3. Does the patient have the requisite knowledge to be able to self-manage the pump as follows:
Pump model and manufacturer Serial number

Pump customer service number (found on back of pump)

Type of insulin used in the pump:
0 Humalog® (lispro) O Novolog® (aspart) O Apidra® (glulisine)

Basal rate 1 units/hour from a.m./p.m. to a.m./p.m.
Basal rate 2 units/hour from a.m./p.m. to a.m./p.m.
Basal rate 3 units/hour from a.m./p.m. to a.m./p.m.

NOTE: patient may have one or more basal rates in a 24 hour period
(if additional basal rates, add to back of form)

Insulin to carb ratio breakfast units of insulin per ___ grams of carb
Insulin to carb ratio lunch units of insulin per ____ grams of carb
Insulin to carb ratio dinner units of insulin per _____grams of carb
Insulin to carb ratio snack units of insulinper ____ grams of carb

NOTE: patient may have one or more Insulin to carb ratios or take fixed amounts at each meal:
units at breakfast; units at lunch; units at dinner

Correction Factor:
Units for every mg/dL over mg/dL (target glucose)

or one unit will bring blood glucose down mg/dL

or make copy of written correction scale supplied by patient and add to chart

>

Does the patient have the physical ability to manage the pump, deliver the doses, and make setting
changes? O yes O no
Does the patient have pump supplies and insulin at bedside? 0 yes [ no
Has the pharmacy verified the insulin? 0 yes O no
Has Biomedical Engineering evaluated the pump for safety? 00 yes [0 no
Has the patient signed the Patient Agreement for Self-Administered Continuous Subcutaneous Infusion
of Insulin? O yes O no
NOTE: all questions must be answered “yes” before patient may use pump.

®~NOO;



‘C") Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE: Tdap (TETANUS, DIPHTHERIA & PERTUSSIS) VACCINE

ADMINISTRATION FOR ANTEPARTUM & POSTPARTUM OBSTETRIC
PATIENTS

R POLICY:

A

Function: To provide guidelines for administration of the Tdap vaccine to antepartum and

postpartum women, and hospital employees.

1. Tdap vaccine will be offered to all inpatient antepartum patients with every pregnancy
(unless already received in current pregnancy) and postpartum women who did not
receive the vaccination during the pregnancy, whe-have-never-been-vaccinated-and
do not have a contraindication to vaccination before discharge from the hospital.

2. The RN shall:

a. Identify and provide Tdap vaccine to all inpatient antepartum and postpartum
women meeting screening criteria.
i Tdap vaccine is contraindicated:

1) In those with history of serious allergic reaction (anaphylaxis) to
any component of the vaccine
2) In those with history of encephalopathy (coma or prolonged

seizure) within 7 days of receiving a vaccine with Pertussis.
ii. Physician notification with a new order is required to proceed with
immunization for the following risk factors:

1) Moderate or severe acute iliness with or without fever until the
acute iliness resolves.

2) Guillain-Barré syndrome less than (<) 6 weeks after previous
dose with tetanus toxoid containing vaccine

3) Unstable neurologic condition (consult MD if patient has any
neurologic condition for further advice)

4) History of an Arthus reaction (i.e. a severe injection site reaction

with hemorrhage or local necrosis typically developing 4 — 12
hours after vaccination) following a previous dose of a tetanus
toxoid—containing and/or diphtheria toxoid—containing vaccine

iii. Simultaneous vaccination of Tdap with MMR and Influenza vaccine is
safe.

iv. Tdap may be given in the 2" or 3" trimester of pregnancy eri
breastfeeding-and should be given with every pregnancy. If not given
during the pregnancy the vaccination should be given postpartum
prior to discharge.

b. Make referrals for significant others, and household contacts of newborn infant to
a nearby clinic affiliated with the Tdap vaccination or to their primary care
provider for screening and if eligible to receive the Tdap vaccination.

c. Employee Health Clinic shall provide screening and vaccination of all health care
providers/employees who have direct patient contact at Tri-City Medical Center.

B. Circumstances:
1. Setting: Tri-City Medical Center - Inpatient Antepartum and Mother-Baby postpartum
care units:
2, Supervision: None required
| Department | 5 iR, tniont - | Pharmacy and | | ;
(Review | | pricadures. | Council | Of OBIGYN ') Therspedties | fry Comimites || ¢ ol
6/10;5/12; | 05112;2115, | 05/12; 2/15, 05/12; 09/15, | 11/12; 0116, | 11/12; 01/16, _
l 1115, 08116 09/16 09/16 06/15, 12/16 02117 0417 04117 0216 12/12; 02/16

71



Patient Care Services
Standardized Procedure: Tdap (Tetanus, Diphtheria & Pertusis) Vaccine Administration Postpartum
Page 2 of 3

3.

Considerations for administration:

a.

PROCEDURE:

A. The RN shall:

1.

Requires careful screening of patient’s prenatal care or lack of prenatal care,
availability of immunization record, and assessment of risk factors associated
with exposure and potential for development of Pertussis

Reduces the risk of Pertussis exposure from postpartum women, significant
others, and extended family members to their newly born infants.

Compliance with recommendation from the California Department of Health,
Centers for Infectious Disease to prevent infant deaths under 12 months due to

Pertussis —May-2014

Identify and document vaccination history regarding previous Td and Tdap vaccination

while screening patient for eligibility for Tdap immunization by going to Ad Hoc, WNS

Maternal Forms, OB Immunization profile for all inpatient antepartum patients and
postpartum patients upon admission to the unit.

a.

Patient is not eligible for vaccination if any of the risk factors below are identified:

i. Previous severe allergic reactions (i.e. anaphylaxis) to any component of
the vaccine.

i History of coma or prolonged seizures occurring less than (<) 7 days of
administration of a pertussis vaccine (DTP, DTaP, Tdap) that was not
attributable to any identifiable cause.

1) Note: Family history of seizures is not a contraindication
iii. Patient received and can verify administration of the Tdap vaccine in this

pregnancy erlast-ten-years{exeeption-the-inpatient-antepartum-patient
whom-should-receive-the-vacscine-with-every-preghansy):

1) A woman who did not get a dose of Tdap in pregnancy, and-has

never-received-a-dose-of Fdap-inthe-past-should get a dose of
Tdap medaately postpartum prlor to dlscharge

iv. Physician order not to give vaccine at this time

Physician notification with a new order is required to proceed with immunization

for the following risk factors:

i Moderate or severe acute iliness with or without fever until the acute
illness resolves

ii. Guillain-Barre syndrome less than (<) 6 weeks after previous dose with
tetanus toxoid containing vaccine

ii. Unstable neurologic condition (consult MD if patient has any neurologic
condition for further advice)

iv. History of an Arthus reaction (i.e. a severe injection site reaction with
hemorrhage or local necrosis typically developing 4 — 12 hours after
vaccination) following a previous dose of a tetanus toxoid — containing
and/or diphtheria toxoid — containing vaccine

REQUIREMENTS FOR CLINICIANS INITIATING STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

A. Current California RN license.
B. Initial Evaluation: Orientation
C. Ongoing Evaluation: Annual Skills Lab

DEVELOPMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

72



Patient Care Services
Standardized Procedure: Tdap (Tetanus, Diphtheria & Pertusis) Vaccine Administration Postpartum
Page 3 of 3

VI

A. Method: This Standardized Procedure was developed through collaboration with Nursing,
Medicine, and Administration.
B. Review: Every two (2) years.

CLINICIANS AUTHORIZED TO PERFORM THIS STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

A. All Registered Nurses who have successfully completed requirements as outlined above are
authorized to direct and perform Tdap Vaccine Administration For Antepartum and Postpartum
Obstetric Patients Standardized Procedure.

REFERENCES:

A. The American College of Obstetricians and Gynecologists Committee. Update on Immunization
and Pregnancy: Tetanus, Diptheria, and Pertussis Vaccination. Opinion Number 521, March
2012

B. CDC, MMWR , February 22, 2013 / Vol. 62 / No. 7 Updated Recommendations for Use of
Tetanus Toxoid, Reduced Diptheria Toxoid, and Acellular Pertussis Vaccine (Tdap) in Pregnant
Women-Advisory Committee on Immunization Practices (ACIP), 2012.

C. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Guidelines for Vaccinating Pregnant Women.
March 2013 Reaffirmed 2015.

D Forsyth, K., Plotkin, S., Tan, T., Wirsing von Konig, C.H. Strategies to Decrease Pertussis

1475 Retriev

Transmission to Infants. Pediatrics 2015;135;

ed August 26, 2016.

73



)
‘C”) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES-POLICY-MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: 04/05 SUBJECT: Titrating Medications, Adult
Patients

REVISION DATE: 08/07; 02/09; 12/11, 03/12 POLICY NUMBER: IV.GG

Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 03/4208/15

Nurse Executive Committee: 03/4209/15

Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approvai: 09/165

Critical Care Committee Approval: 03/17

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 04/4204/17

Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 05/12

Board of Directors Approval: 05/12

A PURPOSE:

1. To define the manner in which medications requiring titration to patient effect are utilized.
B. POLICY:

1. It is the policy of Tri City Medical Center to allow orders for medication titration, which is the
progressive increase or decrease of the medication dose in response to the patient's clinical
status.

a. This policy pertains to the areas where titration occurs (Intensive Care Unit, Emergency

Department, Post-Anesthesia Care Unit, Pain Clinic, Endoscopy, Interventional
Radiology, &4 Labor and Delivery&B).

2. Orders for medications that require titration must include the clinical effect the prescriber desires
for the patient (i.e., titrate to achieve systolic blood pressure (SBP) greater than or equal to
100). Titration increments and starting dose may vary depending on the patient’s clinical status,
co-morbid conditions and other factors. In general, initial doses are started at the lower doses
and longer intervals and titrated up to the desired patient effect.

3. Medications ordered for titration must be approved by the Pharmacy and Therapeutics
Committee. Safe dose ranges for medications that are to be titrated must be reviewed and
approved by that committee.

a. A dose limit (maximum and minimum limits) at which the licensed independent
practitioner must be called for each titrated medication must be set. These dose limits
will correspond to the maximum and minimum dose ranges defined in the Alaris
Medication Safety System Infusion pumps.

b. If a titrated medication continues at or above the dose limit, the Registered Nurse (RN)
shall contact the licensed independent practitioner ordering the titrated medication to
approve the current dose at least every 24 hours by writing specific orders with a new
dose limit at which he/she should be contacted.

c. Clinical staff must assess the patient frequently when titrating mediations to detect
potential problems as early as possible.
4, The attached table defines the medications currently approved for titration.

C. RELATED DOCUMENTS:

1. Patient Care Services Policy: Medication Administration
2. Titratable Drips Reference
G——REFERENGE:



Patient Care Services Policy Manual
Titrating Medications - IV.GG

Page 2 of 4
Titratable Drips Reference
DRUG STANDARD YIELDS CHARTIN | USUAL DOSE RANGE | Titration Parameter
, CONGENTRATION e e | G
Argatroban 250 mg /250 mL NS | 1 mg/mL mcg/kg/min__| 0.25 — 10 mcg/kg/min Titrate per Protocol
Rigsatracurium 100400 mg/100488 | 1 mg/mL mcg/kg/min | 1-10 Goal train-of-four 2:4
mL NS mcg/kg/min;Start or Bedside Shivering
3mcg/kg/min;titrate by Assessment Scale
0.3mcg/kg/hr every 10 Score of 0
min
Dexmedetomidine | 400 mcg/ 100 mL 4 meg/mL | mcglkg/hr 0.2 — 1.4 meg/kg/hr; To maintain RASS of
(Precedex) NS Start 0.4 mcg/kg/hr,; Oto-2
titrate by 0.1 mcg/kg/hr
every 30 minutes
Diltiazem 125mg /100 mL NS | 1 mg/mL mg/hr 5 — 15 mg/hr Start Keep Systolic blood
(Cardizem) (Total volume =125 5mg/hr; titrate by 2.5 pressure LESS than
mL) mg/hr every 15 min 165 mmHg and/or
keep heart rate less
than 120 BPM
*Dobutamine 500 mg /250 mL 2 mg/mL mcg/kg/min | 2 — 20 mcg/kg/min; Start | Keep Cardiac Index
(Dobutrex) D5w 2.5 mcg/kg/min; titrate GREATER than 2.2
(Premix) by 0.5 meg/kg/min every | L/min per square
15 min meter
*Dopamine 400 mg /250 mL 1.6 mg/mL [ meg/kg/min | 2 — 20 mcg/kg/min; Start | Keep Heart Rate
(Premix) Dsw 5 meg/kg/min; titrate by | GREATER than 60
2 mcg/kg/min every 5 BPM and/or keep
min Mean Arterial
Pressure GREATER
than 65 mmHg and/or
Systolic Blood
Pressure GREATER
than 90 mmHg
*Epical 2 mg Epinephrine, 8 meg/mL | mcg/min Based on Epi (as below) | Keep Heart Rate
(Adrenalin/calcium | 1Gm CaCl/250 mL GREATER than 60
) D5W BPM and/or Systolic
Blood Pressure
GREATER than 90
mmHg
*Epinephrine 4 mg /250 mL NS 16 mcg/mL | mcg/min 1 - 10 meg/min; Start 2 | Keep Heart Rate
(Adrenalin) mcg/min; titrate by 2 GREATER than 60
mcg/min every 5 min BPM and/or Systolic
Blood Pressure
*Weight based for CV | GREATER than 90
Surgery Patients* mmHg
0.01 - 0.5 mcg/kg/min;
Start at 0.02
mcg/kg/min and titrate
by 0.02 mcg/kg/min
every 5 min
Esmolol 2500 mg /250 mL 10 mg/mL | mcg/kg/min | 50 — 200 mcg/kg/min; Keep Heart rate
(Brevibloc) D5wW Start 50 mcg/min; titrate | LOWER than 120bpm
(Premix) by 50 mcg/kg/min every | and/or
5 min systolic blood
pressure LOWER
than 165mmHg
Fentanyl 1500 mcg / 150 ml 10 meg/mL | Mcg/hr 50-300 mcg/hr, Start 50 | Keep Goal pain scale
NS mcg/hr, titrate by 50 at less than or equal
mcg every 15 minutes to 2 or at or lower

75



Patient Care Services Policy Manual
Titrating Medications — IV.GG

Page 3 of 4
than patient reported
acceptable pain level.
Furosemide 100 mg /100 mL 1mg/mL mg/hr 10 — 80 mg/hr; Start 10 | Keep urine output
(Lasix) NS mg/hr; titrate by Smg/hr | GREATER than
every hour 20mi/hr
Insulin 100 units / 100 mL 1 unit/mL units/hr 0.5 — 20 units/hr Titrate per protocol
NS
Isoproterenol 1mg/250 mLDSW | 4 mcg/mL | meg/min 2 -10 mcg/min; Start 1 | Keep Heart rate
(Isuprel) mcg/min; titrate by GREATER than
1mcg/min every 10 min | 60bpm
Labetalol 200 mg /200 mL 1 mg/mL mg/min 0.5-2mg/min; Start2 | Keep Heart rate
(Normodyne) D5W mg/min; titrate by 0.5 LESS than120bpm
mg/min every 15 min up | and/or systolic blood
to 300mg in 24 hours pressure LESS
than165mmHg
Lorazepam 50mg/50 ml D5SW 0.2mg/mL | mg/hr 1 - 10 mg/hr; Start Titrate to RASS 0 to -
(Ativan) 2mg/hr titrate by 1 mg 2
every 30 min
Midazolam 50 mg /50 mi DSW | 1 mg/mL mg/hr 1 - 10 mg/hr; Start Titrate to RASS O to -
(Versed) 2magfhr; titrate by 1 mg 2
every 15 min
Milrinone 20 mg /100 mL 200 mcg/kg/min | 0.25 - 0.75 mcg/kg/min | Keep Cardiac Index
(Primacor) D5wW mcg/mL Start 0.25 mcg/kg/min; | GREATER than 2.2
(Premix) titrate by 0.25 L/min per square
mcg/kg/min every hour meter
Morphine 100 mg/ 100 mL NS | 1 mg/mL mg/hr 1-20 mg/hr; Start 2 Keep Goal pain scale
mg/hr; titrate by 0.5 mg | at less than or equal
every 30 min to 2 or at or lower
than patient reported
acceptable pain level.
Nicardipine 20mg/200 ml NS 0.1 mg/mL | mg/hr 2.5 - 15 mg/hr; Start Keep Systolic blood
(Cardene) 5mg/hr; titrate by 2.5 pressure LESS than
mg/hr every 15 min 165mmHg
Nitroglycerin 50 mg /250 mL DSW | 200 mcg/min 5 — 400 mcg/min; Start 5 | Keep Systolic blood
(Tridil) mcg/mL mcg/min; titrate by 5 pressure LESS than
mcg/min every 5 min up | 165mmHg and/or
to 20 meg/min. If no titrate for chest pain
response at 20 mcg/min, | relief
may increase by 10
mcg/min every 5§ min
*Nitroprusside 50 mg /250 mL D5W | 200 mcg/kg/min | 0.25 - 10 mcg/kg/min; Keep Systolic blood
(Nipride) meg/mL Start 0.25 mcg/kg/min; pressure LESS than
titrate by 0.25 165 mmHg
mcg/kg/min every 5 min
*Norepinephrine 4 mg /250 mL NS 16 mcg/min 0.5 - 30 meg/min; Start | Keep Systolic blood
(Levophed) mcg/mL 2 mcg/min; titrate by 2 pressure GREATER
mcg/min every 5 min than 90mmHg
and/or Mean arterial
pressure GREATER
than 65mmHg
Oxytocin 20 units / 1000 mi 20,000 milliunit/mi | 1 milliunitmin-10 Titrate per protocol-
(Pitocin) NS milli n milliunit/min; Max see Women and
units/ml dose 20 milliunit/min Newborn Services
Unit Specific
Procedure
*Phenylephrine 50 mg /250 mL NS 200 mcg/min 5— 180 mcg/min; Start | Keep Systolic blood
(Neosynephrine) meg/mL 10meg/min;titrate by 20 | pressure GREATER

mcg/min every 5 min

than 90mmHg

76



Patient Care Services Policy Manual
Titrating Medications — IV.GG

Page 4 of 4
and/or Mean arterial
pressure GREATER
than 65mmHg
Propofol 1000 mg/ 100 mL 10 mg/mL | mcg/kg/min | 5-80 meg/kg/min ;Start | Titrate to RASS 0 to -
(Diprivan) (10 mg/mL) at 10 meg/kg/min; titrate | 2
by 5 mcg/kg/min every
10 min
Vecuronium 100 mg/ 100 mL NS | 1 mg/mL mcg/kg/min | Normal range 0.8 - 1.7 | Goal train-of-four 2:4
(Norcuron) mcg/kg/ min; Start 0.8 or Bedside Shivering
mcg/kg/min; ftitrate by Assessment Scale
0.1 mcg/kg/hr every 10 | Score of 0

min

v 1172016

* Indicates that these drug infusions can be mixed in a higher concentration strength for fluid restricted patients

77



\

Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

Administrative Policy Manual
District Operations

ISSUE DATE: NEW SUBJECT: Nondiscrimination of Patients in
Health Programs and Activities
Policy

REVISION DATE(S): POLICY NUMBER: NEW

Department Approval: 03/17

Administrative Policies and Procedures Committee Approval: 03/17

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 04/17

Professional Affairs Committee Approval:
Board of Directors Approval:

A. PURPOSE:

1.

It is the policy of Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD) to advance equity and reduce health
disparities by protecting some of the populations that have been most vulnerable to
discrimination in the health care context. TCHD does not te discriminate on the basis of race,
color, national origin, sex, age or disability in admission to, participation in, or receipt of the
services and benefits under any of its programs and activities, whether carried out by
TCHD directly or through a contractor or any other entity with which TCHD arranges to
carry out its programs and activities.

Fri-Gity-Healtheare-Distrct TCHD has adopted an internal grievance procedure providing for
prompt and equitable resolution of complaints alleging any action prohibited by Section 1557 of
the Affordable Care Act and its implementing regulations. Any persen patient who believes
theyhe/she semeone has been subjected to discrimination on the basis of race, color, national
origin, sex, age or disability while seeking admission to, participation in, or receipt of the
services and benefits offered by TCHD, may file a grievance uaderpursuant to this
prosedurePolicy. All grievances must be filed with ¥elanda-Graves;-Patient Relations Specialist,
Tri-City Medical Center, 4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, California 92056-(760)-846-3350, who
has been designated as the Section 1557 Coordinator by F+i-City-Healtheare-DistrictTCHD.

It is against the law for Fr-Gity-Healtheare-DistristTCHD to retaliate against anyone who opposes
discrimination, files a grievance, or participates in the investigation of a grievance.

B. POLICY:

1.
2.

3.

Notice of Nondiscrimination is posted on the Tri-City Medical Center website homepage.

Notice of Nondiscrimination is posted (in English and Spanish) in patient care areas and
registration areas.

Grievances must be submitted to the Section 1557 Coordinator within 60 days of the date the
person filing the grievance becomes aware of the alleged discriminatory action.

A complaint must be in writing, containing the name and address of the person filing it. The
complaint must state the problem or action alleged to be discriminatory and the remedy or relief
sought.

The Section 1557 Coordinator or her/his designee shall conduct an investigation of the complaint.
This investigation may be informal, but it will be thorough, affording all interested persons an
opportunity to submit evidence relevant to the grievance. The Section 1557 Coordinator will
maintain the files and records of Fri-Gity-Healtheare-Distrist TCHD relating to such grievances. To
the extent possible, and in accordance with applicable law, the Section 1557 Coordinator will take
appropriate steps to preserve the confidentiality of files and records relating to grievances and will
share them only with those who have a need to know.

78



Administrative —District Operations
Nondiscrimination Policy

Page 2 of 2

6. The Section 1557 Coordinator will issue a written decision on the grievance, based on a
preponderance of the evidence, no later than 30 days after its filing, including a notice to the
complainant of their right to pursue further administrative or legal remedies.

7. The person filing the grievance may appeal the decision of the Section 1557 Coordinator by
writing to the Chief Executive Officer and/or his/her designee within 15 days of receiving the
Section 1557 Coordinator's decision. The Chief Executive Officer and/or his/her designee shall
issue a written decision in response to the appeal no later than 30 days after its filing.

8. The availability and use of this grievance procedure does not prevent a person from pursuing
other legal or administrative remedies, including filing a complaint of discrimination on the basis of
race, color, national origin, sex, age or disability in court or with the U.S. Department of Health
and Human Services, Office for Civil Rights. A person can file a complaint of discrimination
electronically through the Office for Civil Rights Complaint Portal, which is available at:
https://ocrportal.hhs.gov/ocr/portal/lobby.jsf, er-by mail-er-phone at 1 (800)368-1019 (TDD 1 800
537-7697) or by mail at: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 200 Independence
Avenue, SW, Room 509F, HHH Building, Washington, D.C. 20201. Complaint forms are available
at: http://www.hhs.gov/ocr/office/file/index.html. Such complaints must be filed within 180 days of
the date of the alleged discrimination.

9. FH-Gity-Healtheare-DistristTCHD will make appropriate arrangements to ensure that individuals
with disabilities and individuals with limited English proficiency are provided with free auxiliary
aids and services or language assistance services, respectively, if needed to participate in this
grievance process. Such arrangements may include, but are not limited to, providing qualified
interpreters, written information in other formats (i.e. large print, audio, accessible electronic
formats) , or assuring a barrier-free location for the proceedings. The Section 1557 Coordinator
will be responsible for such arrangements.

| C. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

1. Administrative Policy: Diversity 471

2. Language Assistance Poster

3. Notice of Nondiscrimination Poster (English)

4, Notice of Nondiscrimination Poster (Spanish)

5. Patient Care Services (PCS) Policy: Patient Rights & Responsibilities

6. PCS Policy: Communication with Sensory Impaired and/or Persons with Language Barrier

D. REFERENCES:
1. Section 1557 of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, 2010

79



(C‘) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

Administrative Policy Manual
District Operations

ISSUE DATE: NEW SUBJECT: Policy/Procedure Approval —
Patient Care Services And
Department Specific

REVISION DATE(S): POLICY NUMBER: 8610 - NEW

Department Approval: 03/17

Administrative Policies and Procedures Committee Approval: 03/17

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 04/17

Professional Affairs Committee Approval:
Board of Directors Approval:

A PURPOSE:

1. To define Tri-City Healthcare District's (TCHD) process for the approval of policies/procedures.
B. POLICY:

1. All policies/procedures must be reviewed or revised every three years, according to regulatory
requirements or as required by change in regulation, research, or organizational processes (for
example standardized procedures must be reviewed or revised every two years).

a. Developed in collaboration with the medical staff:
i. If relevant to medical staff activities and/or direct patient care.

b. Developed in collaboration with nursing if relevant to nursing services.

c. Consistent with professional references, applicable regulations, legal requirements,
accreditation standards, and the mission and philosophy of the organization.

2. The electronic policy management system will be used for all policies and procedures.

3. Policies are submitted to the Board of Directors for final approval.

4, Procedures are submitted to the Board of Directors or Administration for final approval based on
regulatory requirements.

a. Procedures affecting nursing services will be submitted to the Board of Directors

5. Staff shall be notified of any new policies/procedures or significant revisions. Education shall be
provided as appropriate.

6. A hard copy of all current policies/procedures must be available in the department for downtime.

C. PROCESS FOR PATIENT CARE SERVICES (PCS) MANUAL APPROVAL:

1.

Approval Process:

Content Expert

Clinical Policies and Procedures Committee (CPP)

Nurse Executive Committee (NEC)

Medical Staff/Department Division if relevant to medical staff activities or direct patient
care

Pharmacy and Therapeutics (P&F)-Committee (P&T) if policies contain medication,
medication administration or if-standardized procedure

Interdisciplinary Practice Committee if a standardized procedure (IDPC)

Medical Executive Committee (MEC)

Professional Affairs Committee (PAC)

Board of Directors (BOD)

apop

o

~Ta -

80



Administrative 200s — District Operations
Policy/Procedure Approval — Patient Care Services and Department Specific

Page 2 of 2
’ 2, The approval process PCS policies/ procedures will be initiated and coordinated through the
CPP.
' D. PROCESS FOR DEPARTMENT SPECIFIC MANAUL-MANUAL APPROVAL:
1. Approval Process:
a. Content Expert
b. Department Director/Management Team
c. Medical Director for clinical areas with a Medical Director when appropriate
d. Medical Staff Department/Division/Committee or Chair for clinical areas when

appropriate
Department Manual Coordinating Committee

| f. Pharmaey-and Therapeutics-CommitteeP&T if contains medication— or medication

administration

l g. Medical-Executive-Committee{MEC) if relevant to Medical Staff activities or direct

patient care
h. Final Approval

i. Policies and nursing procedures: Professional-Affairs-Committee(PAC) and

@

BOD}
ii. Procedures: Administration
2. Each Department is responsible for maintaining their own department specific manual.
a. Makes revisions in the electronic policy management system to policies/procedures

using tracked changes.
i. Issue Date shouid be first Board of approval date.
ii. Revision dates should reflect the Board of approval dates every additional time
the policy/procedure goes to the Board for approval.
b. Obtain Medical Staff and/or Department/Division Chair approval for policies/procedures
related to Medical Staff activities or direct patient care.
3. The Department Manual Coordinating Committee will coordinate approval at P&T, IDPC, MEC,
PAC, the BOD and Administration.



2
(C‘U) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

MEDICAL STAFF

ISSUE DATE: NEW SUBJECT: Medical Staff Funds
REVISION DATE(S): POLICY: APR&P-8710-572
Department Approval Date: 03/17

Medical Staff Department Approval Date: n/a

Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval Date: n/a

Medical Executive Committee Approval Date: 0317

Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date:
Board of Directors Approval Date:

A.

POLICY:
1. It is the policy of Tri-City Medical Staff that monies collected by the medical staff are those funds
generated by medical staff dues and fines as established by the Medical Executive Committee.

PROCEDURE:
1. Medical Staff Fund Account:

a. A separate bank account under the Tri-City Medical Center federal tax identification
number in a bank specified by the Medical Executive Committee is maintained for the
Tri-City Medical Staff Fund.

2. Disbursements:

a. Disbursements are recorded by the Medical Staff Services Department (MSSD) in the
Medical Staff Fund Check and Deposit Register. Each disbursement check requires one
original signature. The (a) Chief of Staff (b) Past Chief of Staff, or (c) the MSSD
Manager, at the written, verbal or e-mail request of either the Chief of Staff or the Past
Chief of Staff, shall sign checks for Medical Staff Fund expenditures pursuant to this
Policy.

b. Medical Staff Fund expenditures under $5,000 may be made at the discretion of the
Chief of Staff. Expenditures over $5,000 must be approved by the Medical Executive
Committee. Disbursements must be supported by receipts and must comply with legal
requirements. All invoices/receipts over $5,000 must be accompanied by documentation
of Medical Executive Committee approval. Checks are prepared within 5 days of receipt
of an invoice/receipt or authorization by the Chief of Staff/Past Chief of Staff.

3. Receipts:

a. All Medical Staff Funds collected must be in the form of a check or credit card. Cash will
not be accepted. All monies received are recorded in the Medical Staff Fund Cash
Receipt Journal by the MSSD. A receipt for payment to the Fund is provided to the
payerpayer upon request. Monies received are deposited weekly by Medical Staff

Services.
4, Bank Statement Reconciliation:
a. Bank Statements are reconciled to the Medical Staff Fund Cash Receipt Journal and the

Check and Deposit Register on a monthly basis by Medical Staff Services. Bank
reconciliations must be dated and signed by the Tri-City Medical Center's Chief Financial
Officer and reviewed, dated, and signed by the Chief of Staff.
5. Accounting Reports to Medical Executive Committee:
a. Quarterly accounting reports of fund activity are to be prepared by Medical Staff
Services and reviewed and presented to the Medical Executive Committee by the Chief

82



Medical Staff
Medical Staff Funds
Page 2 of 2

of Staff. The Medical Executive Committee will make the accounting reports available to
Tri-City Medical Center’s Chief Financial Officer for review upon request.

6. Appropriate Use of Medical Staff Funds:

a.

The Medical Staff Funds will be used for activities reasonably related to a proper
function of the Medical Staff and the amount expended must be reasonable for the
activity conducted. Examples of appropriate use of funds include: stipends to Medical
Staff officers and committee members, as detailed in Medical Staff policies; supplies for
discharging medical staff functions; education of medical staff services personnel; and
medical staff educational materials and conferences; independent legal counsel, when
authorized under the Medical Staff Bylaws. Any expenditure other than as listed in this
paragraph, and in particular any proposed payment of money to any Medical Staff
member, or to any other physician, must first be presented to the Medical Center's Chief
Operating Officer for review in order to assure that State and Federal laws regarding
private inurement, payments for referrals, and “kickbacks” are not violated. The use of
the funds shall be consistent with, and shall not jeopardize, the hospital’s designation as
a tax-exempt organization.

&3



2
‘c‘)) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

OUTPATIENT INFUSION CENTER --OCEANSIDE POLICY-MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: 2/13 SUBJECT: EMERGENCY EVACUATION

REVISION DATE:

Department Approval Date(s): 02/16
MEDICALDER R EDT: 3
BIRECTOR-ARRROVAL: 242
Division of Oncology Approval Date(s): 03/17
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval Date(s): n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): n/a
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):

Board of Directors Approval Date(s): 03/13

A. PURPOSE:

1. To establish evacuation procedures in the event of a fire, earthquake, active shooter, bomb
threat or any situation that places employees,-and-patients and others in imminent danger in the
Center.
B. POLICY:
1. All staff will be trained in emergency evacuation procedure.

C. PROCEDURE:
1. In the event of a fire, earthquake, bomb threat, or any situation that places employees-and,

patients and others in imminent danger, the Center personnel will;

a. Calm patients and assure their safety.

b. Remove the patients who are in immediate danger first.

c. Using the designated emergency exits, evacuate all patients to the designated area as
instructed by the appropriate authority.

ed. Inthe event of an Active Shooter situation the staff should follow the “Run, Hide,

e. The Center's manager/charge person will account for all employees and patients and
report to the hospital safety officer or representative and/or fire department staff, if
present.

D. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

1. Emergency Operations Procedure: CODE SILVER Person with Weapon or Active Shooter

84



Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

OUTPATIENT INFUSION CENTER—OCEANSIDE RPOLICY MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: 2/13 SUBJECT: FIRE ALARM/EVACUATION PLAN

REVISION DATE:

Department Approval Date(s): 06/16
MERICAL/BERARINHENF 2
DIREGTORARPPROVAL:———  3/43
Division of Oncology Approval Date(s): n/a
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval Date(s): n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): n/a
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):

Board of Directors Approval Date(s): 03/13

A. PURPOSE:
1. To safely remove patients and others from Center in the event of a fire or fire alarm.

B. POLICY:
1. When a fire occurs in the center the procedure outlined in the policy will be followed.

C. PROCEDURE:

1. Should evacuation of the patients be necessary, Center personnel will:

a. Reassure patients/others to ard maintain a calm atmosphere

b. Prepare patient(s) for transport to the designated safe location per policy

c. Follow department evacuation procedures and routes according to FEME-TCHD Code
Red procedure — Rescue, Alarm, Contain, and Extinguish (R.A.C.E.)
&, Refer to Evacuation Map posted in department.

d. Perform system emergency shut-down as indicated

e. Upon completion of evacuation of all patients to the designated safe area, the Center

Clinical Manager or RN Supervisor will contact the hospital Safety Officer or command
center for appropriate head count of patients.

D. REFERENCES:
1. Evacuation Map

85



B Hrerrve 2 rnh i

RIS
RALIILIHD YV

N

86

. e

ﬁ.u,m:‘
Tﬂ: L.

oS | v Tel ER

| ll_
@
=8

5 T - -
)
8 | -
- | e, ¢
-
-~ K -4g -
oY N
L] ey =
X :
fifd ™, o
H .. o _.uc.
. B -
e

_
S
B

.\-

o — i

N NI

[

2 Jo Z abed
ue|d uoiendeA3/uLelyY ali
Je)uan uoisnyu| juaneding



‘@) Tri-City Medical Center Distribution: Women's & Children's Services, NICU

PROCEDURE: MEDICATION ADMINISTRATION, NICU .
Purpose: To outline the nursing responsibilities in admin DELETE —_no longer req!JIred, [
Supportive Data: Medications are administered by a registered | follow Patient Care Services ] I
knowledgeable about the medication and tech| Medication Administration Policy
patient, based on type of medication and scop| and Online Clinical Skills
of each discipline.

Raview £, 0 ERe e A Medical
Rgvis:on Re) fvisii| 5 Executive : |
Date” - {57 'onof 9 ol c&tﬁmitgge -~ Col
Naonatoiw
11/06, 05/08, 9/07. 6/09
4/09, 6/11, FHOT 4100 01/17 8/07, 01/17 02/17 03/17 08/07, 04/17 9/07, 6/09 8}12 '
07/16




Women's and Chiidren’s Services Procedure Manual, NICU
Medication Administration, Enteral
Page 2 of 4

88



Women's and Children's Services Procedure Manual, NICU
Medication Administration, Enteral
Page 3 of 4

89



Women's and Children's Services Procedure Manual, NIiCU
Medication Administration, Enteral
Page 4 of 4

90



ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

__ N4 TrCity Medical Center = YOU

Phenol lozenge (Cepastat®): Recommendation for formulary removal

Requestor: Oska Lawrence, PharmD, BCPS, BCCCP (Pharmacy Clinical Manager)

Declared conflicts of interest: None

Situation: Cepastat® is no longer available from pharmacy’s wholesale distributor
Background: Phenol is a topical anesthetic which can be administered as a lozenge to provide

relief for sore throat.

Assessment: Benzocaine-menthol lozenges (Cepacol®) is available as a formulary alternative,
exhibiting similar topical anesthetic properties. A camphor-phenol topical spray is also available
as an alternative.

Recommendation(s):
e Remove phenol lozenge (Cepastat®) from TCMC Formulary

e Maintain benzocaine/menthol lozenge (Cepacol®) as the preferred anesthetic lozenge
on formulary

4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056 > (760) 724-8411

91



ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

Hyoscyamine/atropine/scopolamine/phenobarbital (Donnatal®):
Recommendation for formulary removal

Requestor: Oska Lawrence, PharmD, BCPS, BCCCP (Pharmacy Clinical Manager)
Declared conflicts of interest: None

Situation: In 2015 Concordia Pharmaceuticals acquired the rights to Donnatal and significantly
increased the cost of the drug following previous FDA approval to market it as a branded
product. Donnatal usage at TCMC is very low and is a source of increased drug cost
expenditure due to inventory outdating.

Background: Donnatal® is a combination product containing belladonna alkaloids and a
barbiturate. It is used to treat dyspepsia and bowel spasm. It is frequently added to “GlI
cocktails” and given to differentiate cardiac from esophageal chest pain.

Assessment: A recent systematic review has demonstrated that the addition of Donnatal® to
liquid antacids, does not provide additional benefit over the antacid alone in the setting of
dyspepsia. In 2016, Gl cocktails containing Donnatal® were ordered 40 times. 10
administrations occurred in the ED for general dyspepsia. One administration in the ED was for
Gl spasm, but treatment was deemed ineffective. The remaining administrations occurred in the
inpatient setting. A cursory review of these cases indicated that it was ordered for general
dyspepsia as well.

It was determined that in Cerner, a physician searching for a “Gl cocktail” is presented with the
Donnatal®-containing option as the first choice, likely leading to its order instead of a plain
Donnatal®-Free Gl cocktail. Donnatal® tablets were not ordered for any patient in 2016.

* A 118mL bottle of Donnatal®, sufficient to compound ~10 “Gl cocktails” costs $334
o 40 Donnatal® cocktails = $1200 in 2016
o 40 plain Gl cocktails without Donnatal® (Mylanta, Lidocaine) = $8

e A 100 count bottle of Donnatal® costs $894. No use in 2016 Current supply due to
expire in 2017.

Recommendation(s):

* Recommend removal of Donnatal® elixir and tablets from the TCMC Formulary.
» Regular Gl cocktail (viscous lidocaine + liquid antacid) will remain available for use
» Formulary alternatives for Gl spasm include dicyclomine and hyoscyamine

4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056 > (760) 724-8411

92



TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER

PHARMACY AND THERAPEUTICS COMMITTEE

Request for Formulary Admission {X } Deletion {}
Status Evaluation:

Date: 1/18/2017 Requestor: Dr. Kyaw
Trade Name: Ure-Na Generic Name: Urea

Dosage form(s): Oral powder for solution

Indication: Euvolemic or hypervolemic hyponatremia

Efficacy:
See references

Safety: Literature does not demonstrate any known risk of serious adverse effects

Propensity for medication error: Low

Abuse potential: None

Sentinel event potential: None

Black box warning: None

Cost comparison with similar Formulary products:
Ure-Na: $4 per day

Tolvaptan: $369-738 per day

Conivaptan: $1124 for first 24 hours

Other considerations:

Recommendation: To be used for hyponatremia when patient deemed euvolemic or
hypervolemic.

Process/Plan to monitor Patient Responses: Monitor serum sodium during use

References:

1. Ure-Na ™ [AMCP Dassier]. Phoenix, AZ: Nephcentric; 2016.

2. Decaux G, Andres C, Kengne F, et al. Treatment of euvolemic hyponatremia in the
intensive care unit by urea. Critical Care 2010, 14:R184

3. Soupart A, Coffernils M, Couturier B, et al. Efficacy and tolerance of urea compared with
vaptans for long-term treatment of patients with SIADH. Clinical Journa! of the American
Society of Nephrology. 2012 7:742-747

4. Sterns, R, Emmetft M, Forman J. Overview of the treatment of hyponatremia in adults. in:
UpToDate. Waltham, MA.

5. Spasovski G, Vanholder R, Allolio B, et al. Clinical practice guideline on diagnosis and
treatment of hyponatraemia. 2014. 170, G1-G4

93



Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement (Please check all that apply)
Serving the public interest shall remain the primary focus of all hospital committee activities. Any
circumstances that might potentially be viewed as a conflict of interest in serving the public must be

identified.

__lam a consultant or have served on an advisory board for the company that makes/distributes this
drug.

__I have research funded by the company that makes/distributes this drug.

__lown stock/stock options for the company that makes/distributes this drug.

__lam a speaker for the company that makes/distributes this drug.

__Other:

3 /None of the above /

Submitted by (Signature) N) n \Am (C(\/ Date: I 2 b / [ ?/
Print Name: ~ ) Phone: ' /

94



DELETE - Orders are in
Cerner. Approved for
retirement by PPO

Committee 2/13/17.
Approved at MEC 4/17
for deletion.

Nurse’s - Initials

‘@9 Tri-City Medical Center

4002 Vista Way e Oceanside ¢ CA « 92056

87114010 ANTICOAGULATION
A ORDERS
ge 10f2
8711-4518 PHYSICIAN'S ORDERS

Affix Patient Label

Board Approved 07/11

95



O Read Back all T.O./V.O.orders

Nurse's — Signature Date Time Physician's — Signature Date Time

@ L . Affix Patient Label
Tri-City Medical Center

4002 Vista Way s Oceanside ¢ CA » 92056

87114010 ANTICOAGULATION

IR Page 2 of2

8711-4518 PHYSICIAN'S ORDERS Board Approved 07/11




DELETE - no longer needed,
orders entered in Cerner.
Approved for retirement by PPO

Committee 2/13/17. Approved at _

MEC 4/17 for deletion. |

Nurse’s — Initial

@ Tri-City Medical Center

4002 Vista Way e Oceanside e CA ¢ 92056

LAPAROSCOPIC SURGERY ORDERS
Page 1 of 2

| 8711-4542 PHYSICIAN'S ORDERS

Affix Patient Label

Board Approved 7/12

97



O Read Back all T.0./V.0.orders

Nurse’s — Signature

Date

Time Physician’s — Signature

Date

Time

@ Tri-City Medical Center

4002 Vista Way e Oceanside » CA ¢ 92056

LAPAROSCOPIC SURGERY ORDERS

8711- NEW

Page 2 of 2

PHYSICIAN'S ORDERS

Affix Patient Label

98



PROCEDURE:

DIAGNOSIS:
ALLERGIES:
STATUS: O INPATIENT O OUTPATIENT
CODE STATUS: 0O Full O No Resuscitation for hospital duration*
*Requires notation in Progress Notes.
MEDICATIONS:
mL Gadavist ( gadobutrol) 1mmol/ml IV push per dosing chart
mL Other:
Body Weight Body Weight Total Volume (mL)
b Kg 1 molar Gadavist
22 10 1
33 15 1.5
44 20 2
55 25 25
66 30 3
77 35 3.5
88 40 4
99 45 4.5
110 50 5
132 60 6
154 70 7
176 80 8
198 90 9
220 100 10
242 110 11
264 120 12
286 130 13
308 140 14
GFR > 45 0.1 mi/kg (Standard Dose)
GFR 30 -45 0.05 ml/kg (Half- Dose)
GFR < 30 or acute renal insufficiency: | Do not administer gadolinium based contrast without physician
approval
O Read Back all T.0./V.O.orders
Nurse’s - Signature Date Time Physician’s - Signature Date Time
@ Affix Patient Label
Tri-City Medical Center
4002 Vista Way e Oceanside » CA » 92056
MRI CONTRAST
MEDICATION ORDERS
Page 1 of 1

PHYSICIAN'S ORDERS



